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RESPONSIBILITY
FOR

FINANCIAL
REPORTING

The financial statements of the State of New York Mortgage Agency (the “Agency”), for the fiscal
years ended October 31, 2016 and 2015, are the responsibility of management. The financial
statements were prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

The Agency maintains a system of internal control. The objectives of an internal control system
are to provide reasonable assurance as to the protection of, and accountability for, assets;
compliance with applicable laws and regulations; proper authorization and recording of
transactions; and the reliability of financial records for preparing financial statements. The system
of internal control is subject to periodic review by management and the internal audit staff.

The Agency’s annual financial statements have been audited by Ernst & Young LLP, independent
auditors appointed by the Directors of the Agency. Management has made available to Ernst &
Young LLP all the financial records and related data of the Agency and has provided access to all
the minutes of the meetings of the Directors of the Agency. The independent auditors periodically
meet with the Directors of the Agency to provide engagement related updates and
communications.

The independent auditors conducted their audit in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States of
America. Those standards require that they plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the respective financial statements are free of material misstatement. The
audit includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Agency’s internal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, the independent auditors do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Agency’s internal control over financial reporting. The audit also includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the respective financial statements,
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. The independent auditors’ unmodified
report expresses that the financial statements are presented, in all material respects, in accordance
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

skt

* Sheila Robinson
Senior Vice President/Chief Financial Officer

January 26, 2017
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Report of Independent Auditors

Management and the Directors of the Board
State of New York Mortgage Agency
New York, New York

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the State of New York Mortgage
Agency (the Agency), a component unit of the State of New York, as of and for the years ended
October 31, 2016 and 2015, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the Agency’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free of material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free
of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express
no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the Agency as of October 31, 2016 and 2015, and the changes in its
financial position and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles.

Required Supplementary Information

U.S. generally accepted accounting principles require that Management’s Discussion and
Analysis, the Schedule of Funding Progress — Postretirement Healthcare Plan, the Schedule of the
Contributions to the NYSLRS, and the Schedule of the State of New York Mortgage Agency’s
Proportionate Share of the NYSLRS Net Pension Liability, as listed in the table of contents, be
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of
the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board which
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements
in an appropriate operational, economic or historical context. We have applied certain limited
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States, which consisted of inquiries of management about the
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with
management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary and Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Agency’s basic financial statements. The Supplementary Section is
presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial
statements.

The Supplementary Section is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States. In our opinion, the Supplementary Section is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation
to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The Introductory Section has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the basic financial statements, and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on it.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we also have issued our report dated
January 26, 2017 on our consideration of the Agency’s internal control over financial reporting
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to
provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report
is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering the Agency’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

St + MLL?

January 26, 2017

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited



STATE OF NEW YORK MORTGAGE AGENCY
(A Component Unit of the State of New York)

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Fiscal Year Ended October 31, 2016 and October 31,
2015

Overview of the Financial Statements

The following is a narrative overview of the financial performance of the State of New York Mortgage Agency (the
“Agency” or “SONYMA”) for the fiscal years ended October 31, 2016 (“fiscal 2016”) and October 31, 2015 (“fiscal 2015”)
with selective comparative information for the fiscal year ended October 31, 2014 (“fiscal 2014”). Please read this
analysis in conjunction with the financial statements.

The annual financial statements consist of five parts: (1) management’s discussion and analysis (this section); (2) the
financial statements; (3) the notes to the financial statements; (4) required supplementary information and (5) the
supplemental schedules that report programs of the Agency individually.

The Agency’s financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting in conformity with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

e This section of the Agency’s financial statements, Management’s Discussion and Analysis (the “MD&A”),
presents an overview of the Agency’s financial performance during fiscal 2016 and fiscal 2015. It provides a
discussion of financial highlights and an assessment of how the Agency’s financial position has changed from
the past years. It identifies the factors that, in management’s view, significantly affected the Agency’s overall
financial position. It may contain opinions, assumptions or conclusions by the Agency’s management that
should not be considered a replacement for, and must be read in conjunction with, the financial statements and
other information described below.

The Financial Statements

e  The Statement of Net Position provides information about the liquidity and solvency of the Agency by reporting
the assets, deferred inflows and outflows of resources, liabilities and net position.

o  The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position accounts for all of the current year’s revenues
and expenses in order to measure the success of the Agency’s operations over the past year. It can be used to
determine how the Agency has funded its costs. By presenting the financial performance of the Agency, the
change in net position is similar to net profit or loss for a business.

e  The Statement of Cash Flows is presented on the direct method of reporting. It provides information about the
Agency’s cash receipts, cash payments, and net changes in cash resulting from operations, investing, and
financing activities. Cash collections and payments are presented in this statement to arrive at the net increases
or decreases in cash for each year.

The Notes to the Financial Statements

e  The notes provide information that is essential to understanding the financial statements, such as the Agency’s
accounting methods and policies as well as providing information about the content of the financial statements.

e  Details include contractual obligations, future commitments and contingencies of the Agency.

¢ Information is disclosed regarding any other events or developing situations that could materially affect the
Agency’s financial position.



Required Supplementary Information (“RSI")

e The RSI schedules present information regarding the Agency’s (1) progress in funding its obligation to
provide postemployment benefits other than pensions to its employees, (2) Schedule of Contributions to the
New York State and Local Retirement System (“NYSLRS”) Pension Plan and (3) Schedule of the Proportionate
Share of the NYSLRS Net Pension Liability.

Supplementary Information

e  Presentations of the Agency’s financial information by program are listed in accordance with the requirements
of each program.

Background

The Agency is a corporate governmental Agency, constituting a public benefit corporation and a component unit of
the State of New York (the “State”). The Agency and its corporate existence shall continue until terminated by law;
provided, however, that no such law shall take effect so long as the Agency has bonds, notes or other obligations
outstanding.

The Agency has two primary lines of operations: Single Family Operations and Mortgage Insurance Fund Operations.

Single Family Operations are dedicated to providing affordable mortgage financing to New York State home
purchasers with low and moderate incomes. The Agency provides such financing through a network of participating
lenders for the purchase of newly constructed and existing homes; homes in need of renovation; permanently affixed
manufactured homes and financing for cooperatives and condominiums.

Mortgage Insurance Fund (the “MIF”) Operations are dedicated to providing mortgage insurance for multi-family
affordable residential projects and special care facilities, as well as providing pool and primary mortgage insurance on
single family mortgages purchased by the Agency.

The Student Loan Program was established in order to offer education loans to eligible students attending colleges and
universities in the State. The program has been on hiatus since fiscal 2012. There have not been any Student Loan
purchases since May 1, 2012.

In 2016, legislation was adopted at the State level to authorize the creation of a program to assist homeowners affected
by the national mortgage crisis who are either delinquent on their mortgage payments or in danger of going into
default. The legislation creates the New York State Community Restoration Fund as a new fund to be held by SONYMA
and to be managed by a newly-created subsidiary of SONYMA called the SONYMA Community Restoration Fund
(“CRF”). Moneys in this fund are not to be commingled with any other monies of SONYMA. Although the Agency
has received $10.1 million to date to use for this program, as of October 31, 2016 it was not yet active.



Single Family Operations Highlights
General

Fiscal 2016 saw continued uncertainty in the housing market coupled with the lingering impact of the Federal
Reserve’s post-Financial Crisis monetary policy impacting SONYMA's ability to maintain its traditional
interest rate advantage. As a result of continued aggressive efforts to reduce the Agency’s cost of funds and
offer the most competitively priced mortgages on the market in the State, SONYMA’s loan production
increased significantly from fiscal year 2015. During fiscal year 2016, SONYMA assisted 2,022 low and
moderate-income households (compared to 1,133 households in fiscal 2015 and 991 in fiscal 2014) by
purchasing $368.0 million in mortgage loans (compared to $182.5 million in fiscal 2015 and $161.5 million in
fiscal 2014). In fiscal year 2016, the Agency purchased 78.4% more mortgage loans than during fiscal 2015, and
104% more than in fiscal year 2014. The majority of the bond financed loans were purchased under
SONYMA'’s two primary programs - Low Interest Rate and Achieving the Dream.

During fiscal 2016, the Low Interest Rate Program provided financing to 585 households (compared to 257
households in fiscal 2015 and 325 in fiscal 2014), and the Achieving the Dream Program, which assists lower-
income homebuyers (80% of area median income or less), provided financing for 1,351 households (compared
to 832 households in fiscal 2015 and 536 in fiscal 2014). The continuing success of the Achieving the Dream
Program, which continues to outperform the Low Interest Rate Program in terms of production, indicates the
success of the Agency, even in a period of market pressures, in assisting borrowers who would otherwise find
it difficult to attain homeownership. Of the loans purchased under all of the Agency’s programs, 1,017
borrowers (50.3%) received down payment assistance totaling $6.7 million in fiscal year 2016, compared to
548 borrowers, totaling $3.4 million in fiscal 2015 and 527 borrowers, totaling $3.9 million in fiscal 2014.

SONYMA continues to provide financing to underserved populations and communities. In fiscal year 2016,
1,087 loans were made to low-income households and 539 loans were made to minorities, compared to 719
and 311 respectively in fiscal 2015. In addition, 129 loans were made to households living in Federally-
designated target areas, up from 83 the prior year.

During fiscal 2016, SONYMA continued to better serve its borrowers and industry partners by:

e Focusing its efforts on Low-Income and Minority Homebuyers: The Agency directed its energies
towards providing mortgage loans to those individuals and families for whom SONYMA mortgages
make the difference in achieving sustainable homeownership. This was accomplished by continuing
to target mortgage financing activities on the Achieving the Dream Program, which assists lower-
income homebuyers. In fiscal year 2016, 1,351 of the Agency’s mortgages were originated under this
program, up from 832 in 2015. Overall, 1,087 of the mortgages purchased were made to low-income
homebuyers (80% of area median income or less), up from 719 in 2015, and 241 of the loans SONYMA
purchased statewide were made to low-income, minority households.

e Continuing to promote and expand the reach of the Conventional Plus Program in fiscal 2016.
Conventional Plus was launched in November 2012 and complements SONYMA's existing tax-
exempt bond financed programs and the FHA Plus Program described below. The product takes
advantage of certain pricing and underwriting benefits afforded to SONYMA by Fannie Mae. The
features of Conventional Plus are as follows:

> No loan level price adjustments;

> Lower mortgage insurance coverage requirements than standard loans;

> The availability of mortgage insurance provided by Genworth Mortgage Insurance (or
SONYMA'’s MIF, in the event that Genworth is unwilling to insure the loan); and



> Down payment and/or closing cost assistance up to 3% of the home purchase price (SONYMA
allows its Down Payment Assistance Loan to be used to pay a one-time upfront mortgage
insurance premium, thus eliminating the monthly mortgage insurance premium and
significantly lowering the monthly payment).

The product is available for home purchases and for limited cash-out refinances.

Under Conventional Plus, 83 mortgages of $9.0 million in total principal and $52 thousand in Down
Payment Assistance were originated in fiscal year 2016. In addition, as of October 31, 2016, the
Agency had 19 mortgages of $2.2 million in total principal and $4 thousand in Down Payment
Assistance in its pipeline.

Continuing to promote and expand the footprint of the FHA Plus Program SONYMA launched in
December 2013. Complementing SONYMA's existing tax-exempt bond financed programs and the
Conventional Plus Program, FHA Plus takes advantage of a special exemption from HUD that
enables state housing finance agencies to offer down payment assistance on FHA-insured mortgages,
where the down payment assistance may be used towards the borrower’s minimum cash
investment. The benefits of FHA Plus are:

» Eligible borrowers do not have to be first-time homebuyers;
> No income or purchase price limits; and
> Availability of SONYMA down payment assistance:
o for purchase transactions, up to 3% of the home purchase price.
0 for refinance transactions, up to 3% of the lower of the unpaid principal balance or the
appraised value. (The assistance may be used as a credit against closing costs and prepaids.)

Under this program, 232 mortgages of $52.4 million in total principal and $1.6 million in Down
Payment Assistance were originated in fiscal year 2016. In addition, as of October 31, 2016, the
Agency had 71 mortgages of $17.9 million in total principal and $530 thousand in Down Payment
Assistance in its pipeline.

The Agency has continued to enhance the SONYMA Express® automated system that was developed
to assist participating lenders by providing expedited decisions on SONYMA loan eligibility. The
system has: (a) streamlined the Agency’s loan origination process and dramatically reduced the time
it takes participating lenders to originate SONYMA loans; (b) eliminated uncertainty of a borrower’s
eligibility early in the mortgage application process; (c) lowered overall lender costs; and (d)
provided lenders with the capacity to submit electronic loan files to the Agency, thus eliminating the
need to submit paper files. Continued efforts to improve user experience through SONYMA
Express®, led to an additional 12 lenders opting to use the system in 2016. It is anticipated that approximately
70% of the SONYMA volume will come through SONYMA Express® in fiscal year 2017 as a result.

Continuing to work with SONYMA'’s Advisory Council in gathering insights and recommendations
on future direction from expert industry professionals. The Council helps SONYMA maximize its
effectiveness while simultaneously providing a forum for knowledge-sharing and relationship
building among different members of SONYMA'’s distribution and supply-networks. The Agency
held two meetings with the Advisory Council in fiscal 2016, including a roundtable session with
council member guests and SONYMA staff members, as well as monthly subcommittee meetings.

Continuing Outreach Efforts to Industry Partners by participating in many events with
homeownership counseling organizations, realtors, lenders, not-for profits, veterans groups,
community groups and others. The outreach efforts and collaboration in planning events have



deepened the Agency’s relationships with its partners in the housing community and provided
additional opportunities to promote SONYMA products and services.

Launching the Neighborhood Revitalization Program (NRP). In June 2016, SONYMA announced a
program that leverages $22 million in Chase settlement dollars to aid in the purchase and renovation
of vacant/abandoned homes in neighborhoods hard hit by the foreclosure crisis. In order to
maximize the program’s impact, the decision was made to limit the geographic scope to allow for
enough transactions in selected communities to make an appreciable impact. After much research,
Kingston, Middletown, Troy, Rochester, certain parts of New York City and all of Long Island were
selected. This new program is the result of collaboration between various divisions of the Agency,
nonprofits based in the communities selected for this pilot program, local government, realtors and
SONYMA participating lenders. NRP enables borrowers to purchase a vacant home and receive
downpayment assistance, a subsidized interest rate, and $20,000 toward property repairs with the
ability to finance any additional necessary repairs into the loan. Significant outreach has been
undertaken to develop a template for success in each community and the first loans are in the process
of negotiating contracts, getting estimates for renovations, and submitting mortgage applications.

Launching the SONYMA Spruce Up Initiative. SONYMA Spruce Up is an event in which SONYMA,
local nonprofit partners, lenders, sponsors, contractors and neighborhood associations partner to do
a one-day exterior clean-up of a targeted area. SONYMA held its first event in the Sheridan Hollow
neighborhood in Albany with the assistance of the Affordable Housing Partnership and the Sheridan
Hollow Neighborhood Association. This pilot will be continued with another 5 events to be held in
2017 throughout New York State. The volunteers completed exterior repairs, such as repair/painting
of stoops, planting trees, and cleaning up sidewalks on over 20 homes, completed a total renovation
of two local parks as well as the clean-up and painting of a playground, and performed other
neighborhood beautification tasks throughout an 8-square-block area. Local lenders, community
volunteers, school civics clubs, several local nonprofits, realtors and SONYMA’s MI partners both
sponsored and contributed volunteers to complete the work in a team that was more than 80 people
strong. There was radio and media coverage across all the local networks.

Creation of the Community Restoration Fund. Legislation was passed in the summer of 2016 to create
the SONYMA Community Restoration Fund (CRF). This fund was intended to be a vehicle through
which SONYMA can purchase delinquent notes from various sources in order to help borrowers
modify their loans and remain in their homes. Per the statute, an Advisory Council was created with
the objective of developing standards and guidelines for the pricing, purchase and disposition of
these notes. SONYMA has partnered with AHC to develop a network of nonprofit and lender
partners to assist in foreclosure prevention and outreach for distressed borrowers, and the
framework is now in place for future note purchases.

We have continued to offer bi-monthly webinars through SONYMA University using content with
topics coming from attendee feedback and the SONYMA Advisory Council. To date, more than
2,500 attendees, from our lender, nonprofit and realtor partners, have participated in web-based
training on SONYMA programs. The course content has also been used to create consistent
presentations for onsite trainings that are given by our three Business Development Officers
throughout the State.

Continuing to promote the enhanced Remodel New York Program (“Remodel NY”). As the existing
housing stock continues to age, many homebuyers are faced with the need to complete renovations
to properties they are purchasing. This can be burdensome to first-time homebuyers adjusting to
homeownership, and can keep homebuyers from being able to purchase properties in need of
significant repair. In order to address this increasing need, SONYMA made a number of
enhancements to its Remodel NY program in 2015 and 2016. In 2016, the Agency hired a dedicated
Renovation Loan Analyst to enable the quick and efficient review of Remodel NY loans submitted



pre- and post-purchase. In addition, during fiscal 2016, SONYMA purchased approximately $2.2
million in Remodel NY loans, with another $1.9 million in the pipeline for purchase in late 2016 and
early 2017. The program continues to gain momentum and assist first time homebuyers purchasing
homes in need of repair.

The following table compares SONYMA'’s loan purchases (based on dollars purchased) by calendar year

and program:
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The following table compares SONYMA's loan purchases (based on number of loans purchased) by
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Performance of Mortgage Portfolio

At the end of fiscal 2016, SONYMA's 60 days or more delinquencies were 3.94% (based on the number of
loans). This compares to the New York State and national averages of 7.12% and 3.77%, respectively!. As of
the end of fiscal year 2015, the percentage of 60 days or more delinquencies was 4.54%.

Since the end of fiscal year 2009, the percentage of the Agency’s delinquencies has increased by over 95%
(from 2.02% as of October 31, 2009 to 3.94% as of October 31, 2016). The increase is primarily due to the
significant increases in the elapsed time to complete a foreclosure proceeding. Foreclosure timeframes have
been increasing in New York since the State is a judicial only foreclosure state. This requires judicial
intervention prior to foreclosure completion. There are a number of steps required, such as mandatory
settlement conferences that prolong the process in the State. Burdens on the court system have caused the
time for a foreclosure completion in the State to average over 3 years.

With respect to mortgage loans foreclosed between January 1, 2016 and October 31, 2016, an average of 1,267

days elapsed between the date of default and the date foreclosure proceedings were completed. In contrast,
with respect to Agency mortgage loans foreclosed in 2009, 2010, 2011, 2012, 2013, 2014 and 2015, an average
of, respectively, 502 days, 644 days, 803 days, 931 days, 1,071 days, 1,171 days, and 1,247 days elapsed between
such dates.

! National Delinquency Survey (NDS) latest quarterly figures on conventional delinquencies, as of 9/30/16

1"



Mortgage Insurance Fund Operations
The Mortgage Insurance Fund has two lines of business. It provides insurance on mortgages for affordable multi-
family housing and special needs facilities and on other mortgage loans made by government entities and commercial

lenders. It also provides both pool and primary insurance on single family mortgages purchased by SONYMA.

The following graph highlights the MIF’s project insurance commitments for the fiscal years indicated.

Units and Loan Amount

$740
million

$533
million

$422
million
H Units

M Loan Amount

2014 2015 2016

The decrease in both the number of units and loans was due to the absence of large loans for the moderate rehabilitation
of affordable housing projects in New York City.
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New York State Mortgage Recording
Surtax Receipts

$190

$181
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million

$151.1
million

2014 2015 2016

The decrease in New York State Mortgage Recording Surtax Receipts from fiscal 2015 to fiscal 2016 is due to a modest
decrease in real estate transactions in the State, particularly in commercial real estate transactions in New York City.
The MIF also received $23.7 million in insurance recoveries, application fees and insurance premiums during fiscal
2016 as compared with $19.4 million during fiscal 2015 and $24.0 million during fiscal 2014. Interest earned by the MIF
during fiscal years 2016, 2015 and 2014 was $26.0 million, $22.7 million and $18.2 million, respectively.

The claims-paying ability of the Project Pool Insurance Account and the Single Family Pool Insurance Account of the
MIF are rated “AA-" and “AA+", respectively by Fitch Inc. (“Fitch”). Fitch affirmed its ratings on the Single Family

Pool Insurance Account and the Project Pool Insurance Account, with a stable outlook on July 21, 2016.

On November 8, 2016, Moody’s affirmed the “Aal” rating on the Project Pool Insurance Account with a stable outlook
and its “Aal” rating on the Single Family Pool Insurance Account with a negative outlook.

13



Condensed Financial Information

Net Position Summary Schedules

Condensed Statement of Net Position

Assets
Cash

Investments

Mortgage and Student loans
receivables
Interest receivables
Other assets
Total assets
Deferred outflows of resources
Accumulated decrease in fair
value of hedging derivatives
Deferred loss on refunding
Deferred outflows relating to pension

Total deferred outflows of resources

Liabilities
Bonds payable
Derivative instruments - interest
rate swaps
Interest payable
Allowance for anticipated claims
Unearned income, accounts
payable and other liabilities
Postemployment retirement
benefits
Total liabilities
Deferred inflows of resources
Deferred inflows relating to pension
Total deferred outflows of resources
Net position
Restricted for bond obligations
Restricted for insurance requirements
Unrestricted (deficit)

Total net position

N/A - Not applicable

October 31, % Change
2016- 2015-
2016 2015 2014 2015 2014
(in thousands)

13,873 $ 14,761 $ 10,925 (6%) 35%
2,401,691 2,416,548 2,271,785 (1%) 6%
2,710,011 2,644,084 2,753,256 2% (4%)

19,806 19,659 19,511 1% 1%

17,732 13,830 12,285 28% 13%
5,163,113 5,108,882 5,067,762

14,021 21,508 26,209 (35%) (18%)

5,258 5,535 5,826 (5%) (5%)
4,771 327 — 1,359% N/A

24,050 27,370 32,035
2,524,109 2,611,563 2,707,487 (3%) (4%)

27,088 34,575 39,275 (22%) (12%)

6,942 6,083 6,307 14% (4%)

17,164 16,756 27,812 2% (40%)

168,783 91,253 92,836 85% (2%)
49,145 46,591 42,690 5% 9%
2,793,231 2,806,821 2,916,407
595 — — N/A N/A
595 — —
630,765 613,524 590,362
1,785,332 1,735,314 1,612,867
(22,760) (19,407) (19,839)

2,393,337 $

14

2,329,431 $

2,183,390



Assets

Investments

Investments held by the Agency vary throughout the year as funds are received or disbursed by the
Agency. Investments decreased from $2.42 billion at fiscal 2015 to $2.40 billion at fiscal 2016, a decrease of $14.9 million
or 1%. This compares with an increase from $2.27 billion at October 31, 2014 to $2.42 billion at October 31, 2015, an
increase of approximately $144.8 million or 6%. As of October 31, 2016, the balance includes an additional $111.1
million in insurance reserves when compared to October 31, 2015. The increase as of October 31, 2015 compared to
October 31, 2014 was primarily attributable to the investment of the unexpended proceeds of a bond sale on October
22,2015 in the amount of $135.5 million. Those funds were expended during fiscal 2016.

Mortgage and Student Loans Receivables

Mortgage and student loans receivables are the primary assets of the Agency’s Single Family operation and the Student
Loan Program constituting 52% of the Agencies total assets at October 31, 2016, 52% as of October 31, 2015 and 54% as
of October 31, 2014.

Mortgage and student loans receivables increased from $ 2.64 billion at October 31, 2015 to $2.71 billion at October 31,
2016, an increase of approximately $66 million or 2%. This increase was a result mortgage purchases in the amount
$368.0 million exceeding repayments in the amount of $302.0 million. This compares to a decrease from $2.75 billion at
October 31, 2014 to $2.64 billion at October 31, 2015, a decrease of approximately $109.2 million or 4%. The decreases
was due to repayments in the amount of $291.6 million exceeding mortgage purchases in the amount $182.4 million.

Interest Receivable

Interest receivable has remained fairly constant during the period, increasing from $19.7 million at October 31, 2015 to
$19.8 million at October 31, 2016, a slight increase of approximately $147 thousand or 1%. This compares with $19.5
million in fiscal 2014.

Other Assets

Other assets are primarily comprised of Owned Real Estate held by the Agency’s Single Family operations. Other assets
increased from $13.8 million at October 31, 2015 to $17.7 million at October 31, 2016, an increase of approximately $3.9
million or 28%. This compares with an increase from $12.3 million at October 31, 2014 to $13.8 million at October 31,
2015, an increase of approximately $1.5 million or 13%. The increase in each fiscal year results from increases in the
number of loans being moved from the loan portfolio to Owned Real Estate status and remaining in that status for
longer periods of time.

Liabilities
Bonds Payable

At approximately 90% of total liabilities in fiscal 2016 (93% during fiscal 2015 and 2014, respectively), bonds payable
comprise the largest component of liabilities. Funds generated by the sale of bonds are used to purchase mortgage
loans or to economically refund outstanding bonds. Mortgage loan payments together with interest earnings thereon,
are the sources of funds used to pay scheduled principal and interest due on bonds payable.

Bonds payable decreased from $2.61 billion at October 31, 2015, to $2.52 billion at October 31, 2016, a decline of
approximately $87.5 million or 3%. This compares with a decrease from $2.71 billion at October 31, 2014, to $2.61 billion
at October 31, 2015, a decline of approximately of $95.9 million or 4%. The declines in bonds outstanding are primarily
a result of principal payments on bonds exceeding bond issuances and the continued issuance of economic refunding
bonds.
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Derivative Instruments - Interest Rate Swaps and Deferred Outflows of Resources

The Agency has entered into various interest rate swap contracts in order to manage risk associated with interest on
its bond portfolio. The Agency recognizes the fair value of all derivative instruments as either an asset or liability on
its statements of net position with the offsetting gains or losses recognized in earnings or as either deferred inflows or
outflows of resources if deemed an effective hedge (see note 9). For fiscal 2016, 2015 and 2014, all of the Agency’s
interest rate swaps were determined to be effective hedges. Therefore, the Agency recorded the amount of the fair
values of these interest rate swaps along with a corresponding deferred outflow of resources.

Due to the maturity of three swaps with a total fair value of $2.2 million at October 31, 2015 during fiscal 2016 and an
increase in interest rates, the liability position of the interest rate swaps decreased from approximately $34.6 million in
fiscal 2015 to $27.1 million in fiscal 2016, a decrease of approximately $7.5 million, or 22%. This compares with a
decrease from approximately $39.3 million in fiscal 2014 to $34.6 million in fiscal 2015, a decrease of approximately $4.7
million, or 12%.

Interest Payable

Interest payable increased from $6.1 million at October 31, 2015 to $6.9 million at October 31, 2016, an increase of
approximately $0.8 million, or 14%. The increase in interest payable during fiscal 2016 was a result of an increase in
interest rates on variable rate debt and an extended interest period for HMB bond series 197, 198 and 199. The bonds
were delivered on July 21, 2016 with a first coupon date of April 1, 2017. This compares with a decrease from $6.3
million at October 31, 2014 to $6.1 million at October 31, 2015, a decrease of approximately $224 thousand, or 4% which
was a result of lower interest rates paid on refunding bonds.

Allowance for Anticipated Claims

Allowance for anticipated claims increased from $16.8 million at October 31, 2015 to $17.2 million at October 31, 2016,
an increase of approximately $0.4 million or 2%, as compared to a decrease from $27.8 million at October 31, 2014 to
$16.8 million at October 31, 2015, a decrease of approximately $11.1 million or 40%. The MIF establishes provisions for
potential insurance claims on its policies that are non-performing. The balance fluctuates as projects are moved to and
from performing status or as periodic claims are paid.

During fiscal 2016, 2015 and 2014 the MIF made claim payments in the amounts of $9.9 million, $9.5 million and $5.2
million respectively.

Unearned Income, Accounts Payable and Other Liabilities

Unearned income, accounts payable and other liabilities increased from $91.3 million at October 31, 2015 to $168.8
million at October 31, 2016, an increase of approximately $77.5 million or 85%. This compares to a decrease from $92.8
million at October 31, 2014 to $91.3 million at October 31, 2015, a decrease of approximately $1.5 million or 2%. The
increase in fiscal 2016 was primarily a result of the commitment by the MIF to transfer an additional $100 million to
the State and its Agencies offset by a commitment of $33 million during fiscal 2015. The balance also includes $5.02
million in net pension liability fiscal 2016 and $928 thousand in fiscal 2015.

Other Postemployment Benefits (“OPEB”)

The Agency provides certain group health care benefits to eligible retirees (and for eligible dependents and survivors
of such retirees). The OPEB balance represents the accumulated unfunded actuarial liability required to pay the cost
to eligible retirees. The accumulated amount of OPEB increased from $46.6 million in fiscal 2015 to $49.1 million in
fiscal 2016, an increase of approximately $2.5 million, or 5%. This compares with an increase from $42.7 million in
fiscal 2014 to $46.6 million in fiscal 2015, an increase of approximately $3.9 million, or 9%. An actuarial calculation
using updated census data will occur at October 31, 2016, using a November 1, 2015 measurement date.
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Summary of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

Operating Revenues
Interest on loans
Recoveries

Investment Income:

Decrease from hedge termination

Net change in fair market value
of investments
Other operating revenues

Total operating revenues

Operating Expenses

Interest expense and amortization

of discount on debt
Provision for estimated claims
Pool insurance
Expenditures related to federal
grants
Other operating expenses

Total operating expenses

Net operating revenue

Non-operating revenues (expenses)

Mortgage insurance reserves retained

Federal grants

Transfers to New York State and its

Agencies

Total non-operating revenues (expenses)

Increase (Decrease) in net position

Total net position - beginning of

Cumulative effect of implementing GASB No. 68
Net positon, beginning of fiscal year (as restated)

Total net position- end of fiscal year

N/A - Not applicable

October 31, % Change
2016- 2015-
2016 2015 2014 2015 2014
(in thousands)
130,697 $ 133,147 $ 140,756 (2%) (5%)
5,709 14,689 13,049 (61%) 13%
32,896 30,066 25,070 9% 20%
— — (6,367) N/A N/A
10,407 10,236 3,559 2% 188%
17,030 16,876 15,821 1% 7%
196,739 205,014 191,888
82,170 83,613 93,233 (2%) (10%)
10,371 9,596 14,835 8% (35%)
530 578 671 (8%) (14%)
763 378 766 102% (51%)
45,973 36,954 40,399 24% (9%)
139,807 131,119 149,904
56,932 73,895 41,984 (23%) 76%
117,076 147,990 91,202 (21%) 62%
763 378 766 102% (51%)
(110,865) (75,000) (75,418) 48% (1%)
6,974 73,368 16,550
63,906 147,263 58,534
2,329,431 2,183,390 2,124,856
— (1,222) —
2,329,431 2,182,168 2,124,856
2,393,337 $ 2,329,431 $ 2,183,390
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Operating Revenues
Interest on Loans

Interest on Single Family mortgage loans receivable represents the primary source of funds available for the Agency
to pay scheduled interest due on the Agencies’ outstanding bonds payable. Interest on loans declined from $133.1
million in fiscal 2015 to $130.7 million in fiscal 2016, a decrease of approximately $2.4 million or 2%. This compares
with a decline from $140.8 million in fiscal 2014 to $133.1 million in fiscal 2015, a decrease of approximately $7.7 million
or 5%. The continued decline was primarily due to the duration of mortgages loans outstanding and lower interest
rates on loans held by the Agency during these periods.

Recoveries

Recoveries result from the reclassification of certain loans insured by the MIF from non-performing status to
performing status. Recoveries also include payments made to the MIF after a final claim payment was made.
Recoveries decreased from $14.7 million in fiscal year 2015 to $5.7 million in fiscal year 2016, a decrease of
approximately $9 million, or 61%, as compared with an increase from $13.0 million in fiscal year 2014 to $14.7 million
in fiscal year 2015, an increase of approximately $1.7 million, or 13%.

During fiscal 2016, the Agency received $5.7 million in recoveries in cash ($3.8 million in fiscal 2015 and $8.2 million in
fiscal 2014) and had no non-cash adjustments ($10.9 million in fiscal 2015 and $4.8 million in fiscal 2014).

Investment Earnings and Net Change in Fair Value of Investments

During fiscal 2016, the Agency recognized $32.9 million in net investment income from maturities, sales and
investments amortization (compared with $30.0 million and $25.1 million during fiscal years 2015 and 2014,
respectively). The calculation of realized gains and losses is independent of the calculation of the net increase or
decrease in the fair value of investments. Realized gains and losses on investments that had been held in more than
one fiscal year and sold in the current fiscal year may have been recognized as an increase or decrease in the fair value
of investments reported in prior years. The Agency had recorded mark to market increases of $32.0 million, $21.6
million and $11.4 million, for fiscal years 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively. The net change in the fair value of
investments increased from $10.2 million at October 31, 2015 to $10.4 million at October 31, 2016, an increase of
approximately $171 thousand or 2%. This compares with an increase from $3.6 million at October 31, 2014 to
approximately $10.2 million at October 31, 2015. These amounts take into account all changes in fair value (including
purchases, maturities and sales) that occurred during the year.

Decrease from Hedge Termination

During fiscal 2014, the Agency amended one swap agreement to reflect a change in counterparty and as a result
received a 0.02% reduction in its fixed interest rate. In accordance with GASB 53, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Derivative Instruments, the change in interest rates resulted in a termination of the hedging relationship. As a result, the
Agency recorded a loss of $6.4 million on the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position as of
October 31, 2014.

Other Operating Revenues

Other operating revenues primarily consist of commitment fees, insurance premiums and application fees earned by
the MIF. Other operating revenues increased from $16.9 million at October 31, 2015 to $17.0 million at October 31, 2016,
an increase of approximately $154 thousand or 1%. This compares with an increase from $15.8 million at October 31,
2014 to $16.9 million at October 31, 2015, an increase of approximately $1.1 million or 7%. The variances are primarily
due to an increase in the level of insurance commitments issued by the MIF during fiscal years 2015 and 2014.
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Expenses
Interest Expense and Amortization of Discount on Debt

Interest expense and amortization of discount on debt decreased from $83.6 million in fiscal 2015 to $82.2 million in
fiscal 2016, a decrease of approximately $1.4 million or 2%. This compares with a decrease from $93.2 million in fiscal
2014 to $83.6 million in fiscal 2015, a decrease of approximately $9.6 million or 10%. The decreases were due to the
continued issuance of refunding bonds at lower rates and the decline in the balance of outstanding bonds.

Provision for Estimated Claims

The MIF sets aside provisions for potential insurance claims on the MIF insured multi-family loans and the special
needs facilities that are non-performing. This account fluctuates as loans are moved to and from performing status or
as periodic claims are paid. The provision for estimated claims increased from approximately $9.6 million in fiscal year
2015 to $10.4 million in fiscal year 2016, an increase of approximately $775 thousand, or 8%. This compares with a
decrease from $14.8 million in fiscal year 2014 to $9.6 million in fiscal year 2015, a decrease of approximately $5.2
million, or 35%. The decrease was a result of three non-preforming loans being paid off.

In fiscal 2016, 2015 and 2014, provisions were set aside for multi-family loans insured by the MIF. For the MIF's claim
activity, including provisions for estimated claims established and the balance of total reserves for the fiscal years
ended 2016 and 2015, see Note 8 to the financial statements.

Other Operating Expenses

Other operating expenses primarily consist of bond issuance costs, retiree healthcare expenses, general expenses and
the cost recovery fee charged by the State. Other operating expenses increased from $37.0 million at October 31, 2015
to $46.0 million at October 31, 2016, an increase of approximately $9.0 million or 24%. This compares with a decrease
from $40.4 million at October 31, 2014 to $37.0 million at October 31, 2015, a decrease of approximately $3.4 million or
9%. The variations were primarily the result of fluctuations in legal expenses, information technology expenses and
other general operating expenses.

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)

Mortgage Insurance Reserves Retained

Mortgage insurance reserves retained totaled $117.1 million during fiscal 2016 as compared to $148.0 million during
fiscal 2015 and $91.2 million during fiscal 2014. Such reserves are funded by mortgage recording surtax receipts.
Mortgage surtax receipts for fiscal years 2016, 2015 and 2014 were received in the amounts of $180.8 million, $190.1
million and $151.1 million, respectively. The change in reserves retained was due to the varying levels of commitments
to insure policies originated by the MIF.

Transfers to the State and its Agencies

The 2016-2017 enacted State budget required the MIF to transfer excess reserves in the amount of $100.0 million to the
State and its Agencies. The MIF will transfer the entire $100.0 million during fiscal 2017. The MIF transferred $10.5

million from the Credit Support Account to the Special Account during fiscal 2016.

During fiscals 2015 and 2014, pursuant to the State enacted budget, the MIF was required to transfer $75.0 million and
$75.4 million to the State and its Agencies, respectively.

e 3 e o e
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State of New York Mortgage Agency

(A Component Unit of the State of New York)
Statements of Net Position

Assets
Current assets:
Cash-demand deposits unrestricted
Cash-demand deposits restricted
Cash-custodian deposits
Investments unrestricted
Investments restricted
Total cash and investments
Mortgage loans receivable
Accrued interest receivable:
Mortgage and student loans
Investments
Other assets
Total current assets
Non-current assets:
Investments restricted
Mortgage loans receivable
Student loans receivable
Capital assets - internal use software
Total non-current assets
Total assets

Deferred outflows of resources
Accumulated decrease in fair value of hedging derivatives
Deferred loss on refunding
Deferred outflows relating to pension
Total deferred outflows of resources
Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Bonds payable, net
Interest payable
Allowance for anticipated claims
Unearned income, accounts payable and other
Amounts due to New York State and its Agencies
Total current liabilities
Non-current liabilities:
Bonds payable, net
Derivative instruments - interest rate swaps
Other Postemployment benefits payable
Net pension liability
Total non-current liabilities
Total liabilities

Deferred inflows of resources
Deferred inflows relating to pension
Total deferred inflows of resources

Net position
Restricted for bond obligations
Restricted for insurance requirements
Unrestricted (deficit)

Total net position

See notes to financial statements.
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October 31,
2016 2015
(in thousands)
1,940 $ 2,658
8,399 7,990
3,534 4,113
36,095 22,872
748,292 937,960
798,260 975,593
166,321 162,316
8,504 8,768
11,302 10,891
16,720 12,937
1,001,107 1,170,505
1,617,304 1,455,716
2,536,069 2,472,382
7,621 9,386
1,012 893
4,162,006 3,938,377
5,163,113 5,108,882
14,021 21,508
5,258 5,535
4,771 327
24,050 27,370
105,080 112,015
6,942 6,083
17,164 16,756
63,768 57,325
100,000 33,000
292,954 225,179
2,419,029 2,499,548
27,088 34,575
49,145 46,591
5,015 928
2,500,277 2,581,642
2,793,231 2,806,821
595 —
595 —
630,765 613,524
1,785,332 1,735,314
(22,760) (19,407)
2,393,337 $ 2,329,431




State of New York Mortgage Agency

(A Component Unit of the State of New York)

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and

Changes in Net Position

Operating revenues

Interest earned on loans

Recoveries

Investment income

Net change in fair value of investments

Commitment fees, insurance premiums and application

fees earned
Other income
Total operating revenues

Operating expenses

Interest and amortization of discount on debt
Bond issuance costs

Postemployment retirement benefits expense
General expenses

Overhead assessment by State of New York
Pool insurance

Provision for estimated claims

Expenses related to federal grants

Other

Total operating expenses

Operating income

Non-operating revenues (expenses)
Mortgage insurance reserves retained
Federal grants

Transfers to New York State and its Agencies
Total non-operating revenues

Increase in net position

Total net position, beginning of fiscal year (as previously stated)
Cumulative effect of implementing GASB No. 68
Net positon, beginning of fiscal year (as restated)

Total net position, end of fiscal year

See notes to financial statements.
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Fiscal Year Ended October 31,

2016 2015

(in thousands)

130,697 $ 133,147
5,709 14,689
32,896 30,066
10,407 10,236
15,521 16,056
1,509 820
196,739 205,014
82,170 83,613
2,250 3,481
2,553 4,477
22,060 17,153
4,556 4,556
530 578
10,371 9,596
763 378
14,554 7,287
139,807 131,119
56,932 73,895
117,076 147,990
763 378
(110,865) (75,000)
6,974 73,368
63,906 147,263
2,329,431 2,183,390
— (1,222)
2,329,431 2,182,168
2,393,337 3 2,329,431




State of New York Mortgage Agency

(A Component Unit of the State of New York)
Statements of Cash Flows

Cash flows from operating activities
Interest received on loans
Principal payment on loans
Purchase of loans
Commitment fees, insurance premium and application
fees earned
General expenses
Expenditures related to federal and state grants
Transfers
Other
Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash flows from non-capital financing activities
Interest paid on bonds
Mortgage recording surtax receipts
Payments to New York State and its Agencies
CREF funds received
Federal grants
Bond proceeds
Retirement and redemption of bonds
Net cash used in non-capital financing activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of internal software
Earnings on investments
Proceeds from the sale or maturities of investments
Purchase of investments
Net cash provided (used in) by investing activities
Net change in cash
Cash at beginning of fiscal year
Cash at end of fiscal year
Reconciliation of operating revenues to net
cash provided by operating activities:
Operating income
Adjustment to reconcile operating income to net cash
provided by (used in) operating activities:
CREF funds received
Earnings on investment
Interest payments and amortization
Unrealized gain on investment
Other
Transfers
Changes in assets and liabilities
Mortgage loans and other loans, net
Interest, fees and other receivables
Student loans
Allowance for anticipated claims
Unearned income, accounts payable and other
Postemployment retirement benefits payable
Net pension liability
Net cash provided by operating activities

Non-cash investing activities
Net increase in fair value of investments

See notes to financial statements.
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Fiscal Year Ended October 31,

2016 2015
(in thousands)

130,558 $ 133,609
302,024 291,635
(367,889) (182,463)
23,618 19,469
(27,145) (26,898)

(763) (378)
365 —
(23,173) (21,049)
37,595 213,925
(79,293) (81,583)
180,831 190,115
(115,854) (116,916)
10,100 —
763 378
278,590 419,540
(371,233) (515,458)
(96,096) (103,924)
(119) (900)
41,449 38,374
3,217,456 2,269,390
(3,201,173) (2,413,029)
57,613 (106,165)
(888) 3,836
14,761 10,925
13,873 $ 14,761
56,932 $ 73,895
(10,100) -
(32,901) (30,066)
82,170 83,613
(10,407) (10,236)
4,134 2,321)
365 —
(67,693) 108,015
(3,520) 36
1,765 1,157
408 (11,056)
9,301 (2,719)
2,554 3,901
4,087 (294)
37,595 $ 213,925
10,407 $ 10,236




State of New York Mortgage Agency
(A Component Unit of the State of New York)

Notes to the Financial Statements
October 31, 2016 and 2015

1. Organization and Basis of Presentation

The State of New York Mortgage Agency (the "Agency” or “SONYMA”) is a public benefit
corporation of the State of New York (the ”State”) created by statute in 1970 and for financial
reporting purposes is a component unit of the State. The purpose of the Agency is to make
mortgages available to low and moderate income first-time homebuyers and to other qualifying
homebuyers through its various mortgage programs. The Agency provides mortgage insurance for
qualifying real property loans. In addition, credit support is provided for obligations of the
Convention Center Development Corporation through its Mortgage Insurance Program, in
exchange for a one-time fee received by the Agency in fiscal year 2006. Under State statutes, the
Agency’s operating provisions are subject to periodic legislative renewal. The Agency is exempt
from Federal, State and local income taxes. In April 2009, the Agency’s statutory authority to
purchase education loans was updated and expanded in order to permit the Agency to work with
the New York State Higher Education Services Corporation (“HESC”) in developing a new program
to offer education loans to eligible students attending colleges and universities in New York State
(“Student Loan Program”). The financial statements of the Agency include the accounts of the
respective bondholder funds as well as the Mortgage Insurance Fund, Student Loan Program and
the General Operating Fund.

In 2016, legislation was adopted at the State level to authorize the creation of a program to assist
homeowners affected by the national mortgage crisis who are either delinquent on their mortgage
payments or in danger of going into default. The legislation created the New York State Community
Restoration Fund as a new fund to be held by SONYMA and to be managed by a newly-created
subsidiary of SONYMA called the SONYMA Community Restoration Fund. Moneys in this fund
are not to be commingled with any other monies of SONYMA.

Pursuant to the general resolutions for the Agency’s bond issues and in accordance with the
Mortgage Insurance Program legislation, separate funds have been established to record all
transactions relating to each of the bond resolutions and for the Mortgage Insurance Program.
Generally, the Mortgage Insurance Fund and each bond fund’s assets are available only for the
purposes specified under the respective bond resolutions and/or pursuant to the Agency’s enabling
legislation.

a. Bondholder Funds

Prior to 1983, the Agency issued tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds and applied the proceeds to
the purchase of existing residential mortgage loans from financial institutions operating in the State,
on the condition that the purchase proceeds be made available for new residential mortgage loans
within the State. In 1982, the enabling legislation was amended to permit application of bond
proceeds for direct issuance of forward commitments for new mortgage loans through participating
originators. The newly originated loans are approved and acquired by the Agency and are serviced
by eligible servicers doing business in the State. Mortgages originated through the Agency’s
mortgage programs are subject to certain Federal and/or State regulations and limitations. The
Agency is authorized, however, and has issued obligations, the interest on which is federally
taxable.
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1. Organization and Basis of Presentation (continued)

All acquired mortgage loans are collateralized by first liens. If required, the mortgages are insured
with primary mortgage insurance. In addition, pool insurance coverage is provided in amounts
ranging from 4%-10% of the original mortgage pool amount of a bond series. The assets of the
Agency’s bondholder funds are restricted as to purpose under the respective bond resolutions.

Mortgage escrow balances are maintained by each financial institution servicing the mortgages for
the credit of the mortgagors. The servicers are responsible for the collections and disbursements
made to and from the mortgagors’ escrow accounts. Mortgage servicers annually receive a credit
equal to 2.93% of actual mortgage payments collected less prepayments and curtailments which
they apply as a credit to their applicable New York State tax liability.

b. Mortgage Insurance Fund

The Agency operates its Mortgage Insurance Fund (the “Program” or the “MIF”) pursuant to a
statute enacted in 1978 to encourage the investment by approved lenders in communities where
mortgage capital is found to be insufficient for the preservation and rehabilitation of affordable
housing. Under the Program, qualifying mortgages granted by approved lenders within the State
may be insured, up to 50% of the principal balance, but up to 75% with respect to rehabilitation
loans under certain conditions, and 100% of the principal balance for loans made by public pension
funds and specified public benefit corporations of the State. The net position of the program is
restricted by statutory provisions.

In 1989, the MIF was enhanced by State legislation that expanded the Program’s authority to issue
mortgage insurance for loans in specified economic development zones and to projects providing
affordable housing or financed by government entities. In addition, the Program was granted
authorization to underwrite mortgage pool insurance for the Agency’s mortgage programs. The
1989 enhancements to the statute are subject to periodic renewal by the legislature.

Moody’s Investors Service rates the claims paying ability of the MIF’s Project Pool Insurance
Account and the Single Family Pool Insurance Account each rated “Aal”; Fitch Ratings rates the
claims paying ability of the Project Pool Insurance Account and the Single Family Pool Insurance
Account “AA-" and “AA+”, respectively.

As of October 31, 2016 and 2015, the MIF has outstanding mortgage insurance policies of
approximately $3.44 billion and $3.32 billion, respectively, of which at least 20% has been provided
and reported as part of the restricted net position. Insurance reserves for performing mortgage loans
are established at 20% of the original principal amount except for special needs facilities where the
insurance reserve is established at 40% of the original principal amount. When an insured mortgage
is in default, the insured amount is immediately reserved as a liability reserve at 100% of the original
principal amount of the insured mortgage loan.

By statute, all costs of providing mortgage insurance, including claims, are chargeable against a
State mortgage recording tax surcharge. The State mortgage recording tax surcharge is a dedicated
tax revenue stream received directly by the Agency and recorded in the MIF’s Special Account (the
“Special Account”). Surcharge tax receipts and application fees in excess of expenses and reserve
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1. Organization and Basis of Presentation (continued)

requirements are held in the Special Account. Annually, the excess amount on deposit in the Special
Account amount as of March 31, is remitted to the State by June 18 of that year.

Legislation adopted in 2004 added an account to the Agency’s MIF, the Development Corporation
Credit Support Account, and expanded the powers of the MIF to permit the Agency to provide
credit support for the bonds and ancillary bond facilities of the Convention Center Development
Corporation, a subsidiary of the New York State Urban Development Corporation. The legislation
further limits the aggregate annual amount to be transferred from the Special Account to the
Development Corporation Credit Support Account within the MIF during any twelve month period
ending on March 31# to the lesser of $50 million or the aggregate of the amounts required under
such contracts. Approximately $36.8 million remains on deposit for this purpose as of October 31,
2016.

c. State of New York Community Restoration Fund

The Agency operates the State of New York Community Restoration Fund pursuant to amendments
to the Agency statute in 2016 to authorize the creation of a program to assist homeowners affected
by the national mortgage crisis who are either delinquent on their mortgage payments or in danger
of going into default. The legislation authorizes the Agency to deposit monies received from grants,
gifts or from other sources in the Fund.

The monies in the Fund shall be eligible to be used by the Agency under program guidelines
established by the board of directors of the Agency, in consultation with an advisory council to be
created by the Agency comprised of a minimum of seven members, where a majority of the
membership of the council will be comprised of representatives from non-profit members of
the community with knowledge of foreclosures, housing, or community development needs in
communities hard hit by foreclosures. The guidelines shall include, among other things,
requirements to ensure that fund monies are expended based upon demonstrable community
needs, for the purposes set forth in the legislation.

d. General Operating Fund

The expenses of administrative services provided for the Agency are accounted for within the
General Operating Fund. Services provided for the Mortgage Insurance Fund are accounted for
separately within the Mortgage Insurance Fund.
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2. Significant Accounting Policies

a. Basis of Accounting

The Agency utilizes the accrual basis of accounting wherein revenues are recognized when earned
and expenses when incurred. The financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(“GASB”).

b. Cash

Cash demand deposit accounts are used for the collection of funds received from the servicing
banks.

Cash custodian deposits represent mortgage payments in-transit held by the servicing financial
institutions and not yet remitted to the Agency.

c. Investments

Investments other than collateralized investment agreements are recorded at fair value, which are
based on matrix pricing. Collateralized investment agreements are reported at amortized cost. For
the purpose of financial statement presentation, the Agency does not consider any of its investments
to be cash equivalents.

d. Mortgage Loans Receivable
Mortgage loans on real estate are stated at their unpaid principal balance where appropriate.

The Agency does not provide a reserve against uninsured mortgage loans receivable because all loans benefit
from supplemental mortgage coverage, and, when required, private mortgage insurance.

e. Bonds Payable

Serial and term bonds are stated at their principal amounts outstanding, net of unamortized bond
discount or premium. Serial and term bonds are maintained at their accreted values for purposes of
financial reporting to the date of the respective Statement of Net Position.

In accordance with the respective bond resolutions, funds are available to the trustee to pay debt
service on bonds when due, principally April 1 and October 1.

f. Unamortized Bond Discount and Premium

Bond discount and premium are amortized using the bonds-outstanding method which yields a
level rate of expense over the respective lives of each bond series. The remaining unamortized
portions of such costs relating to bonds which are retired prior to maturity by the Agency in the
open market are included as a deduction in the computation of gain or loss on early extinguishment
of debt. The Agency’s redemptions using proceeds of refunding bonds resulted in losses that were
deferred and amortized over the original life of the refunded bonds or the life of the refunding
bonds, whichever is shorter.
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

g. Bond Issuance Costs

Bond issuance costs are recognized as an expense in the period incurred.

h. Interest on Loans

Interest on loans is accrued and recognized as revenue when earned.

i. Use of Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts and
disclosures included in the Agency’s financial statements during the reporting periods. Actual
amounts could differ from these estimates.

j- Derivative Instruments

The Agency has entered into various interest rate swaps contracts in order to manage risks
associated with interest on its bond portfolio. The Agency recognizes the fair value of all derivative
instruments as either an asset or liability on its statements of net position with the offsetting gains
or losses recognized in earnings or as either deferred inflows or outflows, if deemed an effective
hedge.

k. Capital Assets — Internal Use Software

Expenditures for the purchase, development or licensing of computer software having a cost greater
than $500 thousand are capitalized and amortized on a straight-line basis, generally over the license
term (if applicable) or the estimated useful life of the software.

1. Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 72 (“GASB No. 72”), Fair Value Measurement and Application.
The objective of this statement is to improve financial reporting by clarifying the definition of fair value for
financial reporting purposes, establishing general principles for measuring fair value, providing additional
fair value application guidance, and enhancing disclosures about fair value measurements. These
improvements are based in part on the concepts and definitions established in Concepts Statement No. 6,
Measurements of Elements of Financial Statements, and other relevant literature. The provisions of this
Statement are effective for fiscal reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2015 (see note 4).

In June 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 76 (“GASB No. 76”), The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles for State and Local Governments. The objective of this Statement is to identify —in the
context of the current governmental financial reporting environment—the sources of accounting principles
used to prepare financial statements of state and local governmental entities in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”) and the framework for selecting those principles. The provisions of
this Statement are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2015. The adoption of this standard did
not have a significant impact on the Agency’s financial statements.
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m. Accounting Pronouncements Issued But Not Yet Adopted

In June 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 75 (“GASB No. 75”), Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. The objective of this Statement is to improve accounting and
financial reporting by state and local governments for postemployment benefits other than pensions (other
postemployment benefits or OPEB). It also improves information provided by state and local governmental
employers about financial support for OPEB that is provided by other entities. The provisions of this statement
are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2017. The Agency is currently evaluating the impact that
the adoption of this standard will have on its financial statements.

n. Federal Grants

Grants received from federal government agencies are recognized as non-operating revenue when eligibility
requirements are met.

0. Revenue and Expense Classification

Operating revenue consists primarily of interest on loans, earnings on investments, recoveries, insurance
premiums, commitment fees and application fees. Revenue is accrued and recognized when earned.
Operating expenses include interest expense on bonds, general and administrative expenses, Federal grants
and certain insurance claims activity. All other revenue and expenses are considered non-operating.

p. Use of Net Position

When both restricted and unrestricted assets are available for a particular restricted use, it is the Agency’s
policy to use restricted resources first, and then unrestricted as needed.
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3. Investments

The Agency’s investments at October 31, 2016 and October 31, 2015, excluding accrued interest, consisted of the

following:
October 31, 2016: Collateralized
investment agreements,
Money Market U.S. Total
and Trust Treasury Government Fair
Category Accounts/CDs Obligations Agencies Value
(in thousands)
Invested revenues $ 3,862 $ 293,554 % 946 $ 298,362
Mortgage insurance reserves — 1,703,011 238,064 1,941,075
Bondholder reserves 46,592 115,662 — 162,254
Total $ 50,454 $ 2,112,227 % 239,010 $ 2,401,691
October 31, 2015: Collateralized
investment agreements,
Money Market uUsS. Total
and Trust Treasury Government Fair
Category Accounts/CDs Obligations Agencies Value
(in thousands)
Invested revenues $ 4237 $ 313,851 $ - % 318,088
Mortgage insurance reserves — 1,822,728 7,257 1,829,985
Mortgage acquisition and
other bond proceeds — 109,800 — 109,800
Bondholder reserves 54,358 104,317 — 158,675
Total $ 58,595 $ 2,350,696 $ 7257 % 2,416,548

Agency funds are invested in accordance with the investment guidelines approved annually by the Agency’s board,

which are in compliance with the New York State Comptroller’s Investment Guidelines.

All of the above investments that are securities are in registered form, and are held by agents of the Agency or by
the trustee under the applicable bond resolution, in the Agency’s name.

possession of the securities.
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3. Investments (continued)

Permitted Investments

All bond proceeds and revenues can only be invested in Securities [defined as (i) obligations the principal of
and interest on which are guaranteed by the United States of America; (ii) obligations of the United States of
America; (iii) obligations the principal of and interest on which are guaranteed by the State; (iv) obligations of
the State; (v) obligations of any agency of the United States of America; (vi) obligations of any agency of the
State; (vii) obligations the principal of and interest on which are guaranteed by an agency or instrumentally of
the United States of America; (viii) obligations of the Federal National Mortgage Association (“FNMA”)], Time
Deposits and Certificates of Deposit. Securities are purchased from Primary and approved Dealers, and
Securities are delivered to the applicable Custodian/Trustee who records the investment.

Collateralized Time Deposit Agreements and Certificates of Deposit may only be entered into with banks or
trustees rated at least within the second highest rating category without regard to gradations within such
category by Moody’s Investors Service or Standard & Poor’s. Collateralized Time Deposit Agreements and
certificates of deposit are collateralized at a minimum of 103% of the principal amount of the agreement and
marked to market weekly.

The collateral consists of United States government obligations, other securities the principal of and interest on
which are guaranteed by the United States, Government National Mortgage Association obligations and
obligations of agencies and instrumentalities of the Congress of the United States and obligations of FNMA.
The collateral is delivered to the Custodian and held in the Agency’s name.

Investment Maturities in Years at October 31, 2016 are as follows:

Fair Less More
Value Than 1 1to5 6to 10 Than 10

(in thousands)

Collateralized investment

Agreements $ 46,592 $ 161 $ 5524 $ — $ 40,907
Trust Accounts/CDs 3,862 3,862 — — —
Municipal Bonds 946 — — — 946
U.S. Treasury Bills 439,609 439,609 — — —
U.S. Treasury Notes 1,672,618 295,297 1,098,656 278,665 —
U.S. Government Agencies 238,064 — — 206,016 32,048

Total $ 2401691 $ 738929 $ 1,104,180 $ 484,681 $ 73,901

Interest Rate Risk

The Agency’s exposure to fair value losses arising from rising interest rates is limited by the short
term duration of 30% and 40% of the Agency’s investments for fiscal years ended 2016 and 2015,
respectively.

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk may arise from a bank failure resulting in deposits not being immediately
available for Agency use. Through its guidelines and policies, the Agency has established
minimum capitalization requirements for banks at $50 million and trustees at $250 million and
ratings requirements of at least within the second highest ratings category without regards to
gradations by Moody’s Investor Services or Standard & Poor’s for banks, and at least the third
highest ratings category without regards to gradations by Moody’s Investor Services or Standard
& Poor’s for trustees.
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4 — Fair Value Measurment

In February 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application. This
Statement addresses accounting and financial reporting issues related to fair value measurements. This
Statement provides guidance for determining a fair value measurement for financial reporting purposes
and also provides guidance for applying fair value to certain investments and disclosures related to all
fair value measurements.

The Agency categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by
GAAP. The hierarchy is based on the evaluation inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset or
liability. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are
significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs. The Agency had
the following recurring fair value measurements as of October 31, 2016.

Investment and Derivative Instruments

Measured at Fair Value Amount Level

(in thousands)
Investments (debt securities):

U.S. Treasury Notes $ 1,672,618 2
U.S. Treasury Bills 439,609 2
Government Agencies 238,064 2
Municipal Bonds 946 2
Total $ 2,351,237
Interest rate swaps $ (27,088) 2

Debt securities classified in Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy are valued using a matrix pricing
technique. Derivative instruments classified in Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy are valued using a
market approach that considers benchmark interest rates.

31



5. Mortgage and Student Loans Receivables

The principal balances of mortgage and student loans receivables for the years ended October 31, 2016 and October 31,

2015 were as follows:

October 31, 2016:

Balance at Scheduled Prepayments, Balance at
October 31, Principal Transfers and Purchase of October 31,
2015 Payments Other Credits New Loans 2016
(in thousands)
Homeowner Mortgage
Revenue $ 1,913,864 $ (76,083) $ (137,978) $ 266,187 $ 1,965,990
Mortgage Revenue 718,628 (22,647) (63,309) 101,702 734,374
Homeownership
Program 2,206 (177) 3) — 2,026
Student Loan 9,386 — (1,765) — 7,621
Total Mortgage and
Student Receivable $ 2,644,084 $ (98,907) $ (203,055) $ 367,889 $ 2,710,011
October 31, 2015:
Balance at Scheduled Prepayments, Balance at
October 31, Principal Transfers and Purchase of October 31,
2014 Payments Other Credits New Loans 2015
(in thousands)
Homeowner Mortgage
Revenue $ 1,996,312 $ (76,385) $ (146,022) $ 139,959 $ 1,913,864
Mortgage Revenue 743,677 (20,915) (46,638) 42,504 718,628
Homeownership
Program 2,724 (258) (260) — 2,206
Student Loan 10,543 — (1,157) - 5 9,386
Total Mortgage and
Student Receivable $ 2,753,256  $ (97,558) $ (194,077) $ 182,463 $ 2,644,084
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5. Mortgage and Student Loans Receivables (continued)

Mortgage loans outstanding were as follows at October 31, 2016 and October 31, 2015:

October 31, 2016: Number of Outstanding
Mortgage Principal
Loans Balance
(in thousands)
Homeowner Mortgage Revenue:
Uninsured 7,292 $ 657,149
Private mortgage insurance (at time of purchase) 15,081 1,298,638
Deferred Participation — 10,203
22,373 1,965,990
Mortgage Revenue:
Uninsured 2,307 295,129
F.H.A. (insured) 3 11
Private mortgage insurance (at time of purchase) 3,644 449,437
Participation — (10,203)
5,954 734,374
Homeownership Program:
Uninsured 3 169
Private mortgage insurance (at time of purchase) 45 1,857
48 2,026
Total 28,375 $ 2,702,390
October 31, 2015: Number of Outstanding
Mortgage Principal
Loans Balance
(in thousands)
Homeowner Mortgage Revenue:
Uninsured 7,470 $ 636,863
Private mortgage insurance (at time of purchase) 15,596 1,277,005
Deferred Participation — 4)
23,066 1,913,864
Mortgage Revenue:
Uninsured 2,330 289,345
F.H.A. (insured) 6 40
Private mortgage insurance (at time of purchase) 3,654 429,239
Participation — 4
5,990 718,628
Homeownership Program:
Uninsured 3 188
Private mortgage insurance (at time of purchase) 47 2,018
50 2,206
Total 29,106 $ 2,634,698

33




5. Mortgage and Student Loans Receivables (continued)

The principal balances of mortgage loans receivables in arrears for the years ended October 31, 2016 and October 31,

2015 were as follows:

October 31, 2016:
Percent of Principal
Outstanding
Number of of Loans in
Loans in Arrears to
Days in Arrears Arrears Principal Total Loans
(in thousands)
Homeowner Mortgage Revenue:
60 227 $ 17,903 0.92%
90 plus 683 76,450 3.91%
910 94,353 4.83%
Mortgage Revenue:
60 43 4,749 0.64%
90 plus 160 19,737 2.65%
203 24,486 3.29%
Homeownership Program:
90 plus 6 223 10.98%
223 10.98%
Combined:
60 270 22,652 0.84%
90 plus 849 96,410 3.57%
1,119 $ 119,062 4.41%
October 31, 2015: Percent of Principal
Outstanding
Number of of Loans in
Loans in Arrears to
Days in Arrears Arrears Principal Total Loans
(in thousands)
Homeowner Mortgage Revenue:
60 209 $ 17,611 0.92%
90 plus 858 92,462 4.83%
1,067 110,073 5.75%
Mortgage Revenue:
60 43 4,631 0.64%
90 plus 206 23,954 3.33%
249 28,585 3.97%
Homeownership Program:
60 1 42 1.89%
90 plus 4 234 10.61%
5 276 12.50%
Combined:
60 253 22,284 0.85%
90 plus 1,068 116,650 4.42%
1,321 $ 138,934 5.27%
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6. Bonds Payable

Changes in bonds payable, net for the year ended October 31, 2016 and October 31, 2015 were as follows:

October 31, 2016:
Changes
Bonds in Bond Bonds
Outstanding Matured/ Premium Outstanding
at October 31, Called/ and Discount at October 31,
2015 Redeemed Issued (net) 2016
(in thousands)
Homeowner Mortgage Revenue $ 1,871,926 $ (302,925) % 278,590 $ 5,961 $ 1,853,552
Mortgage Revenue 728,562 (66,830) — (772) 660,960
NYHELPs (Student Loan program) 11,075 (1,478) — - 9,597
Total Bonds Outstanding $ 2,611,563 $  (371,233) $ 278,590 $ 5189 $ 2,524,109
October 31, 2015:
Changes
Bonds in Bond Bonds
Outstanding Matured/ Premium Outstanding
at October 31, Called/ and Discount at October 31,
2014 Redeemed Issued (net) 2015
(in thousands)

Homeowner Mortgage Revenue $ 2,040,757 $  (456,960) $ 284,005 $ 4124 $ 1,871,926
Mortgage Revenue 654,250 (61,702) 135,535 479 728,562
NYHELPs (Student Loan program) 12,480 (1,400) — (5) 11,075
Total Bonds Outstanding $ 2,707,487 $  (520,062) $ 419,540 $ 4598 $ 2,611,563
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6. Bonds Payable (continued)
Homeowner Mortgage Revenue Bonds

Homeowner Mortgage Revenue Bonds have been issued between 1988 and 2016 in a total original amount
of $10,869,158,000. At October 31, 2016, the interest rates for the fixed rate bonds outstanding ranged from
5% to 4.8% and the interest on the variable rate debt ranged from .01% to .93%.

The schedule of Total Annual Maturities as of October 31, 2016 was as follows:

Fiscal Year Interest Bonds Debt
Ending Oct 31, Payable Outstanding Service

(in thousands)

2017 $ 49,849 $ 79,690 $ 129,539
2018 47,779 76,660 124,439
2019 45,997 84,695 130,692
2020 43,867 88,550 132,417
2021 41,275 91,650 132,925
2022-2026 163,220 453,175 616,395
2027-2031 97,547 374,800 472,347
2032-2036 56,212 342,080 398,292
2037-2041 28,932 160,485 189,417
2042-2046 7,551 90,635 98,186
2047 — 135 135

Total Debt Service
Requirement 582,229 1,842,555 2,424,784
Unamortized bond premium — 10,997 —
Total $ 582,229 $ 1,853,552 % 2,424,784
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6. Bonds Payable (continued)

Outstanding Homeowner Mortgage Revenue Bonds

At October 31, 2016, the interest rate for fixed rate Homeowner Mortgage Revenue Bonds outstanding
ranged from .50% to 4.8%.

The schedule of Homeowner Mortgage Revenue Bonds outstanding by series as of October 31, 2016 was as
follows:

Last
Originally Currently Range of Remaining
Series Issued Outstanding Interest Rates Maturity
(in thousands)

115 $ 35,000 $ 20,670 Reset Weekly 2034
129 34,000 30,685 Reset Weekly 2035
132 34,000 30,015 Reset Daily 2037
135 34,000 25,600 Reset Daily 2037
139 34,000 33,055 Reset Daily 2037
142 34,000 32,705 Reset Daily 2037
144 30,000 29,435 Reset Daily 2037
147 50,000 43,515 Reset Weekly 2037
153 50,000 44,870 Reset Weekly 2047
159 60,000 60,000 Reset Weekly 2038
160 11,560 80 3.75% 2017
162 25,000 25,000 Reset Weekly 2039
163 66,825 35,550 2.55%-4.0% 2026
164 84,365 11,700 2.1%-2.2% 2017
165 50,000 8,465 4%-4.75% 2042
166 107,585 80,315 2.796%-3.999% 2021
167 10,695 10,695 3.1%-4.1% 2022
168 50,065 45,860 2.10%-5.0% 2040
169 43,060 15,095 1.45%-2.6% 2021
170 19,940 19,940 2.4%-3.9% 2027
171 12,000 12,000 3.40% 2022
172 150,000 139,980 1.66% - 4.203% 2027
175 82,660 69,510 2.414% - 4.116% 2028
176 66,835 66,745 1.45%-3.75% 2042
177 33,200 12,135 1.1%-3.05% 2027
178 79,370 31,975 4.2% - 4.65% 2043
179 13,090 6,055 1.65% 2017
180 33,405 23,785 2.6%-4.1% 2023
181 38,255 32,440 4.65% -4.80% 2044
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6. Bonds Payable (continued)

Outstanding Homeowner Mortgage Revenue Bonds (continued)

Last
Originally Currently Range of Remaining
Series Issued Outstanding Interest Rates Maturity
(in thousands)
182 25385 $ 8,985 0.8%-4.4% 2034
183 96,480 83,450 1.2%-4.6% 2031
184 18,960 12,255 1.19%-2.685% 2020
185 12,000 12,000 3.95% 2029
186 80,190 71,770 1.20% - 4.30% 2029
187 31,650 8,600 1.14%-1.59% 2018
188 27,920 25,520 3.60 - 3.85% 2044
189 88,850 78,415 1.0%-3.85% 2034
190 60,000 60,000 3.45% - 3.85% 2045
191 72,935 60,820 0.9%-3.5% 2034
192 45,410 45,410 3.8-4.0% 2035
193 20,640 17,460 0.7%-4.1% 2040
194 85,020 82,265 1.35-3.8% 2035
195 66,185 66,070 3.0% - 4.0% 2046
196 38,595 37,850 0.5%-3.7% 2037
197 100,715 100,715 1.4% - 3.5% 2044
198 23,095 23,095 0.7% - 1.75% 2022
199 50,000 50,000 Reset Weekly 2037
Unamortized bond
premium — 10,997
Total 2,316,940 1,853,552
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6. Bonds Payable (continued)
Outstanding Homeowner Mortgage Revenue Bonds (continued)

As of October 31, 2016, the additional debt service requirements of the Agency’s hedged variable rate debt
on associated derivative instruments for the period hedged are as follows:

Fixed
Fiscal Year Swap Nominal Interest Swap Offset Net Swap
Ending Oct 31, Amount Payments Payments Interest
(in thousands)

2017 $ 94,000 $ 9,827 (L,733) $ 8,094
2018 161,365 6,546 (1,160) 5,386
2019 1,440 2,332 (388) 1,944
2020 1,520 2,280 (380) 1,900
2021 1,600 2,225 (371) 1,854
2022-2026 8,070 10,240 (1,708) 8,532
2027-2031 22,795 8,131 (1,357) 6,774
2032-2036 31,155 12,122 (2,023) 10,099
2037-2041 55 1 - 1
Total $ 322,000 $ 53,704 $ (9,120) $ 44,584

The above amounts assume that current interest rates on October 31, 2016 and the variable-rate offset to the fixed
rates of the hedging derivative instruments will remain the same for the term of the respective swaps.
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6. Bonds Payable (continued)

Mortgage Revenue Bonds

Mortgage Revenue Bonds have been issued between 1984 and 2016 in a total original amount of
$4,515,094,000. At October 31, 2016, the interest rates for the fixed rate bonds outstanding ranged from
2% to 5.0%.

The Schedule of Total Annual Maturities at October 31, 2016 was as follows:

Fiscal Year Interest Bonds Debt
Ending Oct 31, Payable Outstanding Service

(in thousands)

2017 $ 22,654 $ 23,455 $ 46,109
2018 22,118 19,595 41,713
2019 21,128 18,325 39,453
2020 21,071 19,225 40,296
2021 20,339 20,765 41,104
2022-2026 91,121 79,990 171,111
2027-2031 74,888 119,985 194,873
2032-2036 51,297 148,935 200,232
2037-2041 24,213 183,280 207,493
2042-2045 1,984 24,370 26,354
Total Debt Service
Requirement 350,813 657,925 1,008,738

Unamortized bond
premium — 3,430 —
discount - (395) -
Total $ 350,813 $ 660,960 $ 1,008,738
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6. Bonds Payable (continued)

Outstanding Mortgage Revenue Bonds

At October 31, 2016, the interest rate for fixed rate Mortgage Revenue Bonds outstanding ranged

from 1% to 5%.

The schedule of Mortgage Revenue Bonds outstanding by series as of October 31, 2016 as follows:

Originally Currently Range of Remaining
Series Issued Outstanding Interest Rates Maturity
(in thousands)
38B $ 30,000 $ 26,960 3.07% 2041
38C 66,000 53,020 3.01% 2041
38D 138,110 114,090 3.55% 2041
38E 35,000 28,900 3.55% 2035
39 57,385 40,130 3.25%-5.0% 2028
40 22,615 4,425 3.0%-3.125% 2017
41 14,820 10,315 2.45%-4.0% 2028
42 5,180 1,225 2.25%-2.5% 2018
43 14,330 990 2.25%-2.3% 2017
44 38,555 18,330 3.40%-4.0% 2021
45 44,000 26,535 2.9%-5.0% 2029
46 97,855 27,785 3.15%-5.0% 2029
48 110,905 102,960 2.625%-3.75% 2041
49 54,755 54,420 2.45-4.0% 2043
50 33,165 15,245 1.05%- 3.15% 2027
51 75,180 75,180 2.25% - 4.0% 2045
52 40,220 39,705 1.30% - 3.50% 2030
53 20,135 17,710 1.0% - 3.069% 2023
Unamortized bond
premium — 3,430
discount — (395)
Total $ 898,210 $ 660,960
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6. Bonds Payable (continued)

Student Loan Program

The Agency, doing business as The State of New York Higher Education Finance Authority issued the
NYHELPs Educational Loan Revenue Bond, 2009 Series A in a total original amount of $97,795,000. At
October 31, 2016, the amount of $9,597 remained outstanding with the interest rates ranging from 3.88% to
5.25%.

The schedule of Total Annual Maturities as of October 31, 2016 was as follows:

Total

Fiscal Year Interest Bonds Debt

Ending Oct 31, Payable Payable Sevice

(in thousands)
2017 $ 407 $ 1,935 § 2,342
2018 331 1,405 1,736
2019 271 1,295 1,566
2020 205 1,435 1,640
2021 141 1,210 1,351
2022-2026 488 1,262 1,750
2027 25 1,055 1,080
Total Debt Service

Requirement $ 1,868 $ 9,597 $ 11,465
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7. Other Assets

At October 31, 2016 and October 31, 2015, other assets consisted primarily of Owned Real Estate for which the

balances were as follows:

October 31, 2016:
Number of Book Appraised
Bondholder Funds Loans Value Value
($ in thousands)
Homeowner Mortgage Revenue 208 $ 13,829 $ 21,241
Mortgage Revenue 36 2,520 4,131
Homeownership 1 75 145
Prepaid Mortgage Insurance — 296 —
245 $ 16,720 $ 25517
October 31, 2015:
Number of Book Appraised
Bondholder Funds Loans Value Value
($ in thousands)
Homeowner Mortgage Revenue 147 $ 10,679 $ 13,717
Mortgage Revenue 27 1,892 3,213
Homeownership 1 75 145
Prepaid Mortgage Insurance — 291 —
175 $ 12,937 $ 17,075
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8. Allowance for Anticipated Claims

The Mortgage Insurance Fund claim activity for the fiscal years ended October 31, 2016 and October 31, 2015 was as

follows:

October 31, 2016:

Allowance, beginning of year
Current year provision
for estimated claims
Current year adjustment to
claims status
Claims paid and recoveries, net
Allowance, end of year

October 31, 2015:

Allowance, beginning of year
Current year provision
for estimated claims
Current year adjustment to
claims status
Claims paid and recoveries, net

Allowance, end of year

Project Pool Primary Total
Insurance Insurance Insurance Insurance
(in thousands)
16,756 $ - $ — 16,756
745 8,794 832 10,371
(5,709) (5,709)
5,372 (8,794) (832) (4,254)
17,164 $ - 5 — 17,164
Project Pool Primary Total
Insurance Insurance Insurance Insurance
(in thousands)
27,812 $ - % — 27,812
2,397 6,930 269 9,596
(14,689) — — (14,689)
1,236 (6,930) (269) (5,963)
16,756 $ - $ — 16,756
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9. Synthetic Fixed Rate Swaps

As of October 31, 2016, the Agency has nine negotiated swaps outstanding as part of its risk management program, serving to
increase financial flexibility and reduce interest costs. These swaps were entered into with six financial institutions (the
“Counterparties”) for a current total notional principal of $322,000,000. These synthetic fixed-rate swaps correspond to the State
of New York Mortgage Agency Homeowner Mortgage Revenue (“HMB”) variable-rate bond series listed below.

The fair value balances and notional amounts of derivative instruments outstanding at October 31, 2016 are within level 2
category of the fair value hierarchy. The changes in fair value of such derivative instruments from the year then ended as
reported in the 2016 financial statements are as follows:

Changes in fair value Fair value at October 31, 2016
Classification Amount Classification Amount Notional
Cash flow hedge Deferred outflow $7,486,779 Debt ($27,088,053) $322,000,000

The fair value of the interest rate swaps were estimated using the zero-coupon method. This method calculates the future net
settlement payments required by the swap, assuming that the current forward rates implied by the yield curve correctly
anticipate future spot interest rates. These payments are then discounted using the spot rates implied by the current yield curve
for hypothetical zero-coupon bonds due on the date of each future net settlement on the swaps.

Objective and Terms of Hedging Derivative Instruments

The following table displays terms of the Agency’s hedging derivative instruments outstanding at October 31, 2016, along with
the credit rating of the associated counterparty. The objective of all of the swaps entered into was to hedge changes in cash
flows in the associated bond series:

Synthetic Fixed Rate Swaps

Terms
Notional

Associated Bond Series Amount | Effective | Maturity Fixed

(Note 1) (000s) Date Date rate paid Fair Value Counterparty
HMB Sr. 129/162/199* $34,000 11/17/05 10/01/35 | 3.5870% ($8,305,053) Wells Fargo Bank NA
HMB Sr.132/162/199* $34,000 03/09/06 04/01/37 | 3.4783% ($9,853,905) JPMorgan Chase Bank NA
HMB Sr. 142/162* $34,000 02/01/07 04/01/17 | 3.5650% ($494,159) Wells Fargo Bank NA
HMB Series 144/162* $30,000 06/07/07 04/01/17 | 3.6540% ($449,321) The Bank of New York Mellon
HMB Series 147* $30,000 09/20/07 10/01/17 | 3.4250% ($815,592) JPMorgan Chase Bank NA
HMB Series 199* $40,000 12/14/07 04/01/18 | 3.1970% ($1,460,726) Goldman Sachs Bank USA
HMB Series 153** $30,000 03/27/08 04/01/18 2.9900% ($1,003,355) Merrill Lynch Der. Products AG
HMB Sr. 115/153/162* $30,000 08/14/08 10/01/18 | 3.1760% ($1,422,282) Royal Bank of Canada
HMB Series 159** $60,000 10/30/08 10/01/18 3.5400% ($3,283,660) Royal Bank of Canada

* Variable rate payment received from counterparties is 63% of 1 month LIBOR plus 0.25%.
** Variable rate payment received from counterparties is SIFMA.
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9. Synthetic Fixed Rate Swaps (Continued)

COUNTERPARTY RATINGS

Counterparty Name Moody’s/S&P/Fitch
The Bank of New York Mellon Aa2/AA-/AA
Goldman Sachs Bank USA Al/A/A+

JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A. Aa3/A+/AA-
Merrill Lynch Derivative Products AG Aa3/AA-/NR

Royal Bank of Canada Aa3/AA-/AA

Wells Fargo Bank, NA Aa2/AA-/AA

Risks

Credit risk. The Agency is exposed to credit risk on hedging derivative instruments that are in asset positions. To minimize its
exposure to loss related to credit risk, it is the Agency’s policy to require counterparty collateral posting provisions in its non-
exchange-traded hedging derivative instruments. These terms require full collateralization of the fair value of hedging
derivative instruments in asset positions (net of the effect of applicable netting arrangements) should the counterparty’s credit
rating not be within the two highest investment grade categories by at least one nationally recognized statistical rating agency
or the rating by any nationally recognized statistical rating agency fall below the three highest investment grade rating
categories. The Agency has never been required to access collateral.

It is the Agency’s policy to enter into netting arrangements whenever it has entered into more than one derivative instrument
transaction with a counterparty. Under the terms of these arrangements, should one party become insolvent or otherwise default
on its obligations, close-out netting provisions permit the non-defaulting party to accelerate and terminate all outstanding
transactions and net the transactions’ fair values so that a single sum will be owed by, or owed to, the non-defaulting party.

Interest rate risk. The Agency is exposed to interest rate risk on its interest rate swaps. On its pay-fixed, receive-variable interest
rate swap, as LIBOR or SIFMA decreases, the Agency’s net payment on the swap increases.

Basis risk. The Agency is exposed to basis risk on its pay-fixed interest rate swap hedging derivative instruments because the
variable-rate payments received by the Agency on these hedging derivative instruments are based on a rate other than interest
rates the Agency pays on its hedged variable-rate debt, which is remarketed on either weekly or daily basis. As of October 31,
2016, the weighted-average interest rate on the Agency’s hedged variable-rate debt is 0.535%, while the applicable 63% of one
month LIBOR plus 0.25% and SIFMA were 0.588% and 0.63%, respectively.

Termination risk. The Agency or its counterparty may terminate a derivative instrument if the other party fails to perform under
the terms of the contract. If at the time of termination, a hedging derivative instrument is in a liability position, the Agency
would be liable to the counterparty for a payment equal to the liability, subject to netting arrangements.

Rollover risk. The Agency is exposed to rollover risk on hedging derivative instruments should a termination event occur prior
to the maturity of the hedged debt.
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9. Synthetic Fixed Rate Swaps (Continued)

Contingencies

Five of the Agency’s counterparties have derivative instruments that include provisions that require the Agency to post
collateral in the event its credit rating falls below certain levels. The collateral posted is to be in the form of U.S. Treasury
securities in the amount of the fair value of the hedging derivative in a liability position net of the effect of applicable netting
arrangements. If the Agency does not post collateral, the hedging derivative instrument may be terminated by the counterparty.

Two of the five counterparties requiring collateral posting have collateral posting provisions if the Agency’s rating falls to Baal
or below or not rated by Moody’s or BBB+ or below or not rated by Standard & Poor’s. If the collateral posting requirements
were triggered at October 31, 2016, the Agency would be required to post $12,130,223 in collateral to these counterparties
($13,555,085 at October 31, 2015).

Three of the five counterparties requiring collateral posting have collateral posting thresholds relating to various rating levels.

e  The threshold amount is $10,000,000 if the Agency’s rating falls to Baal as rated by Moody’s and BBB+ as rated by
Standard and Poor’s. At these ratings, if collateral posting requirements were triggered at October 31, 2016, the Agency
would have been required to post $0 in collateral to these counterparties.

e  The threshold amount is $5,000,000 if the Agency’s rating falls to Baa2 as rated by Moody’s and BBB as rated by
Standard and Poor’s. At these ratings, if collateral posting requirements were triggered at October 31, 2016, the Agency
would have been required to post $3,799,212 in collateral to these counterparties.

e  The threshold amount is $1,000,000 if the Agency’s rating falls to Baa3 as rated by Moody’s and BBB- as rated by
Standard and Poor’s. At these ratings, if collateral posting requirements were triggered at October 31, 2016, the Agency
would have been required to post $11,505,154 in collateral to these counterparties.

e  The threshold amount is zero if the Agency’s ratings fall to below Baa3 as rated by Moody’s and below BBB- as rated
by Standard and Poor’s. At those ratings, if collateral posting requirements were triggered at October 31, 2016, the
Agency would have been required to post $13,954,475 in collateral to these counterparties.
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10. Other Postemployment Benefits (“OPEB”)

The Agency is a participating employer in the New York State Health Insurance Program (“NYSHIP”), which
is administered by the State of New York as a multiple employer agent defined benefit plan. Under the plan
as participated in by the Agency, eligible retired employees receive health care benefits with employees
paying 25% of dependent coverage costs and 10% of individual employee costs. The Agency’s plan complies
with the NYSHIP benefit provisions. In addition, as provided for in Civil Service Law Section 167, the
Agency applies the value of accrued sick leave of employees who retire out of service to the retiree's share of
costs for health benefits.

The Agency provides certain group health care, death benefits and reimbursement of Medicare Part B
premium for retirees (and for eligible dependents and survivors of retirees). Contributions towards part of
the costs of these benefits are required of the retirees.

Retiree contributions towards the cost of the benefit are determined depending on a number of factors,
including hire date, years of service, and/or retirement date. GASB Statement No. 45 requires the valuation
must be calculated at least biennially. The most recent biennial valuation was calculated with a valuation
date of November 1, 2015 and was used as the basis for the determination of costs for the year ended October
31, 2016 The total number of retirees and surviving spouses receiving OPEB from the Agency as of November
1, 2015 was 55.

The Agency elected to record the entire amount of the net OPEB obligation in the fiscal year ended October
31, 2006. The Agency also elected not to fund the net OPEB obligation more rapidly than on a pay-as-you-go
basis. The net OPEB obligation relating to postemployment benefits is in the approximate amounts of $49.1
million and $46.6 million as of October 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

The Agency is not required by law or contractual agreement to provide funding for other postemployment
benefits other than the pay-as-you-go amount necessary to provide current benefits to retirees and eligible
beneficiaries/dependents. During the fiscal years ended October 31, 2016 and 2015, the Agency paid $644
thousand and $576 thousand, respectively.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation: The Agency’s annual OPEB cost (expense) is calculated based on
the annual required contribution of the employer (“ARC”), an amount that was actuarially determined by
using the Projected Unit Credit Method (one of the actuarial cost methods in accordance with the parameters
of GASB Statement No. 45).

The Agency is a participating employer in NYSHIP, the Agency does not issue a separate stand-alone
financial report regarding postemployment retirement benefits. The NYSHIP financial report can be
obtained from:

NYS Department of Civil Service
Employee Benefits Division
Alfred E. Smith Office Building
Albany, NY 12239
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10. Other Postemployment Benefits (Continued)

The portion of the Actuarial Present Value allocated to a valuation year is called the Normal Cost.
Calculations are based on the types of benefits provided under the terms of the substantive plan at the time of
each valuation and on the pattern of sharing of costs between the employer and plan members to that point.
Calculations reflect a long- term perspective. The Agency uses a level dollar amount and an amortization
period of ten years on an open basis.

The following table shows the elements of the Agency’s annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount actually
paid, and changes in the Agency’s net OPEB obligation to the plan for the years ended October 31, 2016 and
2015:

2016 2015
(in thousands)

Annual required contribution (ARC) $ 7,261 $ 8,159

Interest on net OPEB obligation 1,398 1,387
Adjustment to ARC (5,462) (5,069)
Annual OPEB cost 3,197 4,477
Payments made (644) (576)
Increase in net OPEB obligation 2,553 3,901
Net OPEB obligation —beginning of year 46,592 42,690
Net OPEB obligation —end of year $ 49,145 $ 46,591

The Agency’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net
OPEB obligation for the fiscal years ended October 31, 2016, October 31, 2015 and October 31, 2014 are as
follows:

Fiscal Annual Percentage of Net
Year OPEB Annual OPEB OPEB
Ended Cost Cost Paid Obligation
($ in thousands)
10/31/2016 $3,197 20.1% $49,145
10/31/2015 $4,477 12.9% $46,591
10/31/2014 $4,302 14.2% $42,690

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions: Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts
and assumptions about the probability of events far into the future and the actuarially determined amounts are
subject to continual revision as actual results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made
about the future. The OPEB-specific actuarial assumptions used in the Agency’s November 1, 2015 OPEB
actuarial valuations were based on the projected unit credit method (as its actuarial cost method), a 3.00% per
annum discount rate (3.25% as of November 1, 2015) and that retiree contributions are assumed to increase at
the same rates as incurred claims.
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10. Other Postemployment Benefits (continued)
The premium rate is used for retirees and dependents with basic medical coverage.

Initial monthly premium rates are shown in the following table:

Monthly Rate Effective as of October 31, 2016

Eligible-Medicare Basic
Single $680.91
Family $1,682.33

2009 Medicare Part B premiums are assumed to increase by Part B trend rates. No retiree is
assumed to have income in excess of the threshold which would result in increasing Part B
premiums above 25% of Medicare Part B costs.

Health Care Cost Trend Rate (HCCTR). Covered medical expenses are assumed to increase by the
following percentages:

HCCTR Assumptions
Year Ending Rate Year Ending Rate
2016 6.2% 2030 5.2%
2017 6.1% 2035 6.0%
2018 5.9% 2040 5.8%
2019 5.6% 2050 5.2%
2020 5.4% 2060 5.0%
2025 5.0% 2080 4.1%

Mortality rates listed below are those recommended by the actuary:

Age Male Female
60 0.643% 0.575%
65 1.086% 0.961%
70 1.770% 1.553%
75 3.062% 2.492%
80 5.536% 4.129%
85 9.968% 7.076%

The required schedule of funding progress immediately following the notes to the financial
statements presents multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets
is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits.
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11. Commitments and Contingencies

Office Leases
The Agency is obligated under leases for office locations in the City of New York and Buffalo.

The Agency and the New York State Housing Finance Agency (“HFA”) entered into an operating
lease for office space which commenced in fiscal year 1994 for a term of fifteen years. The lease was
renewed on January 1, 2009 for a term of ten years expiring January 31, 2019.

The leases obligate the Agency to pay for escalations in excess of the minimum annual rental (ranging
from $2.4 million to $4.7 million) based on operating expenses and real estate taxes. The Agency bears
approximately 50% of the minimum annual lease payments under this lease with the balance paid by
HFA, with whom the Agency shares the leased space.

Rental expense for the fiscal years ended October 31, 2016 and 2015 were approximately $2.8 million
and $2.6 million, respectively. As of October 31, 2016, the future minimum lease payment, which
includes the Agency’s pro rata share of the annual payment for the office space leases, under the non-
cancelable operating leases are as follows:

(in thousands)
Fiscal year ending October 31:

2017 $ 2,366
2018 2,366
2019 (Three months) 591
Total minimum lease commitments required $ 5,323

Litigation

In the course of business, the Agency is party to various administrative and legal proceedings. Although the
ultimate outcome of these actions cannot be ascertained at this time and the results of legal proceedings cannot
be predicted with certainty, it is the opinion of management that the resolution of these matters will not have a
material adverse effect on the financial position, changes in financial position or cash flows of the State of New
York Mortgage Agency as set forth in the Financial Statements.

Risk Management

The Agency is subject to normal risks associated with its operations, including property damage, general liability
and crime. Such risks are managed through the purchase of commercial insurance. There have been no
decreases in coverage in the last three years.
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12. Transfers to New York State and its Agencies

The New York State Executive Budget required the Agency to make certain transfers of money from the MIF's
Project Pool Insurance Account totaling $100 million ($75 million for fiscal 2015). Each transfer requires a
determination by the Agency, that, at the time of such transfer, the reserves remaining in the Project Pool
Insurance Account are sufficient to attain and maintain the credit rating required to accomplish the purposes of
the Project Pool Account. The Agency also transferred $10.5 million from the Credit Support Account to the
Special Account.

State budget legislation in future years may provide for transfers from the Project Pool Insurance Account or
other accounts in the MIF. The Agency makes no representation regarding whether any such transfers, or the
amounts thereof, will be enacted.

13. Net Position

The Agency’s Net Position represents the excess of assets and deferred outflows over liabilities and deferred
inflows and largely consists of mortgage loans and investments. The Agency’s net position is categorized as
follows:

a. Restricted for Bond Obligations

Such amount represents earned commitment fees and net investment earnings accumulated to date. These
amounts are invested in mortgage receivables and reserve investments. The revenues from the investments are
necessary to meet scheduled payments of interest and principal on bonds, amortization of bond issuance costs
and, if available, used to redeem bonds in advance of scheduled maturities as provided under the various bond
resolutions.

b. Restricted for Insurance Requirements

As of October 31, 2016 and 2015, the Mortgage Insurance Fund’s net position represents the reserve for policies
in force of $3.44 billion and $3.32 billion, respectively. Included within policies in force are single family
mortgage primary and pool policies (total aggregate loss limit) totaling $519 million and $504 million in 2016 and
2015, respectively. Commitments outstanding as of fiscal years ended 2016 and 2015 were $1.39 billion and $1.19
billion, respectively. The Agency provided $10.4 million and $9.7 million during fiscal 2016 and 2015 for
potential claims on mortgages insured by the Mortgage Insurance Fund.

The Agency recorded recovery income in the amount of approximately $3.6 million during fiscal 2016 and $3.3
million during fiscal 2015 as a result of an Ulster County Industrial Development Agency mortgage relating to a
nursing home in Kingston, New York. The mortgage was assigned to the Agency as a result of a claim paid by
the Mortgage Insurance Fund in July 2003.

The Agency remitted to the State excess tax collections during fiscal 2016 in the amount of $75.3 million. The
Agency also remitted $42.9 million during fiscal 2015. The Agency was instructed to transfer to the State,
Municipalities and Agencies from the project insurance account $100 million and $75 million for fiscal years 2016
and 2015, respectively.
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14. New York State and Local Employees” Retirement System Pension Plans

Plan Description & Benefits Provided

The Agency participates in the New York State and Local Employees’ Retirement System (ERS) which together
with the New York State and Local Police and Fire Retirement System (PFRS) is collectively referred to as New
York State and Local Retirement System (the “System”). These are cost-sharing multiple-employer retirement
systems. The System provides retirement benefits as well as death and disability benefits. The net position of
the System is held in the New York State Common Retirement Fund (the “Fund”), which was established to
hold all net assets and record changes in plan net position allocated to the System. The Comptroller of the State
of New York serves as the trustee of the Fund and is the administrative head of the System. The Comptroller is
an elected official determined in a direct statewide election and serves a four year term. Thomas P. DiNapoli
has served as Comptroller since February 7, 2007. In November, 2014, he was elected for a new term
commencing January 1, 2015. System benefits are established under the provisions of the New York State
Retirement and Social Security Law (RSSL). Once a public employer elects to participate in the System, the
election is irrevocable. The New York State Constitution provides that pension membership is a contractual
relationship and plan benefits cannot be diminished or impaired. Benefits can be changed for future members
only by enactment of a State statute. The Agency also participates in the Public Employees” Group Life
Insurance Plan (GLIP), which provides death benefits in the form of life insurance. The System is included in
the State’s financial report as a pension trust fund. That report, including information with regard to benefits
provided, may be found at www.osc.state.ny.us/retire/publications/index.php or obtained by writing to the
New York State and Local Retirement System, 110 State Street, Albany, NY 12244.

Contributions

The System is noncontributory except for employees who joined the New York State and Local Employees’
Retirement System after July 27, 1976, who contribute 3 percent of their salary for the first ten years of
membership, and employees who joined on or after January 1, 2010 who generally contribute 3 to 6 percent of
their salary for their entire length of service. Under the authority of the NYSRSSL, the Comptroller annually
certifies the actuarially determined rates expressly used in computing the employers’ contributions based on
salaries paid during the Systems’ fiscal year ending March 31. Contributions for the current year and two
preceding years were equal to 100 percent of the contributions required, and were as follows:

Year 2016 $153,327
Year 2015 $147,895
Year 2014 $107,475

e  Chapter 260 of the Laws of 2004 of the State of New York allows local employers to bond or amortize a
portion of their retirement bill for up to 10 years in accordance with the following schedule:

e  For State fiscal year (SFY) 2004-05, the amount in excess of 7 percent of employees’ covered pensionable
salaries, with the first payment of those pension costs not due until the fiscal year succeeding that fiscal
year in which the bonding/amortization was instituted.

e  For SFY 2005-06, the amount in excess of 9.5 percent of employees’ covered pensionable salaries.

e  For SFY 2007-08, the amount in excess of 10.5 percent of employees’ covered pensionable salaries.
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14. New York State and Local Employees’ Retirement System Pension Plans
(Continued)

This law requires participating employers to make payments on a current basis, while bonding or
amortizing existing unpaid amounts relating to the System’s fiscal years ending March 31, 2005 through
2008. The Agency has made all required payments on a current basis.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources and
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

At October 31, 2016 and 2015, the Agency reported a liability of $5,015,045 and $928,000, respectively, for
its proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of October
31, 2016 and 2015 respectively and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was
determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The Agency’s proportion of the net pension liability
was based on a projection of the Agency’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to
the projected contributions of all participating members, actuarially determined.

At March 31, 2016 and 2015, the Agency’s proportion was 0.0312458% and 0.0270301% respectively.
For the year ended October 31, 2016 and 2015, the Agency recognized pension expense of $1,908,470 and

$861,203 respectively. At October 31, 2016, the Agency reported deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience $25,342 $594,450
Changes of Assumptions $1,337,361 —
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on
pension plan investments $2,975,200 —
Changes in proportion and differences between LG
contributions and proportionate share of contributions $432,650 —
LG contributions subsequent to the measurement date — —
Total $4,770,553 $594,450
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14. New York State and Local Employees’ Retirement System Pension Plans
(Continued)

The cumulative net amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year ended October 31:

2017 $1,066,296
2018 $1,066,296
2019 $1,066,296
2020 $977,215

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability at March 31, 2016 was determined by using an actuarial valuation as of April 1,
2015, with update procedures used to roll forward the total pension liability to March 31, 2016. The
actuarial valuations for NYSLRS used the following actuarial assumptions:

Actuarial cost method Entry age normal
Inflation rate 2.5%
Salary scale 3.8% in ERS, 4.5% in PFRS, indexed by service
Investment rate of return,
including inflation 7.0% compounded annually, net of investment expenses
Cost of living adjustments 1.3% annually
Decrements Developed from the Plan’s 2015 experience study of the
period April 1, 2010 — March 31, 2015
Mortality improvement Society of Actuaries Scale MP-2014

The actuarial assumptions used in the April 1, 2015 valuation, with update procedures used to roll forward
the total pension liability to March 31, 2016, are based on the results of an actuarial experience study for the
period April 1, 2010 — March 31, 2015.
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14. New York State and Local Employees’ Retirement System Pension Plans
(Continued)

The long term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building block
method in which best estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns net of
investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to
produce the long term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the
target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates
of return for each major asset class included in the target asset allocation as of March 31, 2016 and 2015 are
summarized below.

Long-Term Expected

Asset Class Target Allocation Real Rate of Return
Domestic Equity 38% 7.30%
International Equity 13 8.55
Private Equity 10 11.00
Real Estate 8 8.25
Absolute Return 3 6.75
Opportunistic Portfolio 3 8.60
Real Asset 3 8.65
Bonds and Mortgages 18 4.00
Cash 2 2.25
Inflation Indexed Bonds 2 4.00

100%

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to calculate the total pension liability as of March 31, 2016 and 2015 was 7.0% and
7.5% respectively. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumes that
contributions from plan members will be made at the current contribution rates and that contributions from
employers will be made at statutorily required rates, actuarially. Based upon the assumptions, the
NYSLRS’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit
payments of current plan members. Therefore the long term expected rate of return on pension plan
investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension
liability.
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14. New York State and Local Employees’” Retirement System Pension Plans
(Continued)

Sensitivity of the Proportionate Shore of the Net Pension Liability to the Discount Rate
Assumption

The following presents the current and previous period net pension liability of the employers calculated
using the current-period discount rate assumption of 7.0% and 7.5% respectively, as well as what the net
pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower (6.0%
current period and 6.5% previous period) and 1-percentage-point higher (8.0% current period and 7.5%
previous period) than the current assumption:

1% Current
Decrease Assumption 1% Increase
(in thousands)
October 31, 2016 6.0% 7.0% 8.0%
ERS net pension liability $11,309 $5,015 ($303)
October 31, 2015 6.5% 7.5% 8.5%
ERS net pension liability $6,087 $928 ($3,454)

Deferred Compensation
Some employees of the Agency have elected to participate in the State’s deferred compensation plan in

accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 457. Agency employees contributed $438 thousand and
$425 thousand during fiscal 2016 and fiscal 2015, respectively.
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14. New York State and Local Employees’ Retirement System Pension Plans
(Continued)

New York State Voluntary Defined Contribution Program

In March 2012, Chapter 18 of the Laws of 2012 was signed into law and allows Agency employees that meet
certain requirements, to participate in the State University of New York (“SUNY”) optional retirement plan
called the NYS Voluntary Defined Contribution Plan (“VDC Program”).

Beginning July 1, 2013, all non-union employees hired on or after July 1, 2013 with an annual salary of $75
thousand or more were given the option of joining the VDC program. The VDC Program provides benefits
that are based on contributions made by both the Agency and the participant. Employee contribution rates
range from 4.5% to 6%, dependent upon annual salary. The employer contribution rate is 8% of gross
income. All contributions and any subsequent earnings are to be held by the Agency in a segregated account
and credited to the individual accounts for each plan participant. Employees vest after one year of service, at
which time their entire account balance is transferred to an investment firm of their choosing within the VDC
Program. The amount owed to participants upon retirement is based solely on the account balance at the
time of withdrawal. Employees may choose either the New York State and Local Employees’ Retirement
System or the VDC Program, but not both. As of October 31, 2016, there were five Agency employees
enrolled in the VDC Program.

KK
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State of New York Mortgage Agency

(a component unit of the State of New York)

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS -

POSTRETIREMENT HEALTHCARE PLAN
October 31, 2016

(in thousands)

Unfunded
Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial
Valuation Value of Accrued Liability Accrued Funded Covered Ratio of UAAL to
Date Assets (AAL) Liability(UAAL)  Ratio Payroll ~ Covered Payroll
@) ®) CBA) (WO ©) (C/D)
November 1, 2015 — $ 42918 % 42,918 — $ 9,614 446%
November 1, 2013 — $ 45619 $ 45,619 — $ 7,418 615%
November 1, 2011 — $ 42682 $ 42,682 — $ 7,382 578%
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State of New York Mortgage Agency

(a component unit of the State of New York)

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS TO THE
NYSLRS PENSION PLAN

LAST 10 FISCAL YEARS

October 31, 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012

($ in thousands)

Contractually required contribution $ 1,656 $ 1,500 $ 1,300 $ 1,300 $ 1,600

Contributions in relation to the contractually required

contribution 1,656 1,500 1,300 1,300 1,600

Contribution deficiency (excess) $ - $ - $ — $ — $ -

Covered-employee payroll $ 9614 $ 9000 $ 8300 $ 7400 $ 7,400

Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 17% 17% 16% 18% 22%
October 31, 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

(% in thousands)

Contractually required contribution $ 992 $ 610 $ 678 $ 615 $ 831
Contributions in relation to the contractually required

contribution 992 610 678 615 831
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ — $ — $ — $ — $ —
Covered-employee payroll $ 790 $ 8600 $ 8400 $ 8500 $ 7,800
Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 13% 7% 8% 7% 11%
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State of New York Mortgage Agency

(a component unit of the State of New York)

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK MORTGAGE
AGENCY'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NYSLRS
NET PENSION LIABILITY

October 31,2016

2016 2015
The Agency's portion of the net pension liability 0.0312458% 0.0270301%
The Agency's proportionate share of the net pension liability $ 5,015,000 $ 928,000
The Agency's covered-employee payroll $ 9,614,000 $ 9,030,000
The Agency's proportionate share of the net pension liability
as a percentage of its covered-employee payroll 52.2% 10.3%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability 90.7% 97.9%

This schedule is intended to show information for ten years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available.
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State of New York Mortgage Agency

(A Component Unit of the State of New York)
Schedules of Net Position

October 31, 2016
with comparative totals for 2015

Assets
Current assets:
Cash-demand deposits restricted
Cash-demand deposits unrestricted
Cash-custodian deposits
Investments unrestricted
Investments restricted
Total cash and investments
Mortgage loans receivable
Accrued interest receivable:
Mortgage and student loans
Investments
Other assets
Total current assets
Non-current assets:
Investments restricted
Mortgage loans receivable
Student loans receivable
Capital assets- internal use software
Total non-current assets
Total assets

Deferred outflows of resources
Accumulated decrease in fair value of hedging derivatives
Deferred loss on refunding
Deferred outflows related to pension
Total deferred outflows of resources
Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Bonds payable, net
Interest payable
Allowance for anticipated claims
Unearned income, accounts payable and other
Amounts due to New York State and its Agencies
Interfund payables
Total current liabilities
Non-current Liabilities:
Bonds payable, net
Derivative instruments - interest rate swaps
Other postemployment benefits payable
Net pension liability
Total non-current liabilities
Total liabilities

Deferred inflows of resources
Deferred inflows relating to pensions
Total deferred inflows of resources

Net position
Restricted for bond obligations
Restricted for insurance requirements
Unrestricted (deficit)

Total net position
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General Homeowner
Operating Mortgage Mortgage
Fund Revenue Revenue
(in thousands)
— 1,781 275
1,940 — —
— 2,572 962
36,095 — —
— 217,715 95,195
38,035 222,068 96,432
— 100,175 65,964
— 6,095 2,109
7 1,191 515
— 14,027 2,617
38,042 343,556 167,637
— 84,843 13,942
— 1,865,815 668,410
1,012 — —
1,012 1,950,658 682,352
39,054 2,294,214 849,989
— 14,021 —
— 5,258 —
4,771 — —
4,771 19,279 —
— 79,690 23,455
— 4,821 1,894
14,879 2,393 (291)
(3,049) 1,666 (1,054)
11,830 88,570 24,004
— 1,773,862 637,505
— 27,088 —
49,145 — —
5,015 — —
54,160 1,800,950 637,505
65,990 1,889,520 661,509
595 — —
595 - -
— 423,973 188,480
(22,760) — _
(22,760) 423,973 188,480




Supplemental Schedule I

Single Family Student Mortgage Total All Funds
Homeownership Programs Loan Insurance October 31,
Program Total Program Fund 2016 2015

(in thousands)

- $ 2,056 $ 5297 $ 1,046 $ 8399 $ 7,990
- 1,940 - - 1,940 2,658
- 3,534 - - 3,534 4,113
— 36,095 - - 36,095 22,872
- 312,910 12,827 422,555 748,292 937,960
- 356,535 18,124 423,601 798,260 975,593
182 166,321 - - 166,321 162,316
13 8,217 287 - 8,504 8,768
- 1,713 33 9,556 11,302 10,891
76 16,720 - - 16,720 12,937
271 549,506 18,444 433,157 1,001,107 1,170,505
- 98,785 - 1,518,519 1,617,304 1,455,716
1,844 2,536,069 - - 2,536,069 2,472,382
- - 7,621 - 7,621 9,386
- 1,012 - - 1,012 893
1,844 2,635,866 7,621 1,518,519 4,162,006 3,938,377
2,115 3,185,372 26,065 1,951,676 5,163,113 5,108,882
- 14,021 - - 14,021 21,508
- 5,258 - - 5,258 5,535
- 4,771 - - 4,771 327
— 24,050 — — 24,050 27,370
- 103,145 1,935 - 105,080 112,015
- 6,715 227 - 6,942 6,083
- - - 17,164 17,164 16,756
- 16,981 27 46,760 63,768 57,325
- - - 100,000 100,000 33,000
1 (2,436) 16 2,420 - -
1 124,405 2,205 166,344 292,954 225,179
- 2,411,367 7,662 - 2,419,029 2,499,548
- 27,088 - - 27,088 34,575
- 49,145 - - 49,145 46,591
- 5,015 - - 5,015 928
- 2,492,615 7,662 - 2,500,277 2,581,642
1 2,617,020 9,867 166,344 2,793,231 2,806,821
- 595 - - 595 -
= 595 = = 595 =
2,114 614,567 16,198 - 630,765 613,524
- - - 1,785,332 1,785,332 1,735,314
- (22,760) - — (22,760) (19,407)
2114 § 591,807  $ 16,198 & 1785332 $ 2,393,337 $ 2,329,431
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State of New York Mortgage Agency

(A Component Unit of the State of New York)

Schedules of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

Fiscal Year Ended October 31, 2016
with comparative totals for 2015

Operating revenues
Interest earned on loans
Recoveries

Investment Income
Net change in fair market value
of investments

Commitment fees, insurance premiums and application
fees earned

Other income

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses

Interest and amortization of discount on debt
Bond issuance costs

Postemployment retirement benefits expense
General expenses

Overhead assessment by State of New York
Pool insurance

Provision for estimated claims

Expenditures related to federal grants

Other

Total operating expenses

Operating (loss) income

Non-operating revenues (expenses)

Mortgage insurance reserves retained
Federal grants

Transfers to New York State and its Agencies
Interfund transfers

Total non-operating revenues (expenses)

(Decrease) Increase in net position

Net positon, beginning of fiscal year (as previously stated)

Cumulative effect of implementing GASB No. 68
Net positon, beginning of fiscal year (as restated)
Total net position, end of fiscal year
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General Homeowner
Operating Mortgage Mortgage
Fund Revenue Revenue
(in thousands)

- $ 95,697 $ 34,169

71 5,297 1,421

12 (1,320) (684)
540 961 —

623 100,635 34,906

— 58,789 22,922

— 2,109 141
2,553 — —
13,398 3,847 295
3,417 — —

- 317 54
763 — —

696 10,052 3,565
20,827 75,114 26,977
(20,204) 25,521 7,929
763 - -
(365) — —
16,453 (16,115) —
16,851 (16,115) -
(3,353) 9,406 7,929
(19,407) 414,567 180,551
(19,407) 414,567 180,551
(22,760) % 423,973 § 188,480




Supplemental Schedule II

Single Family Student Mortgage Total All Funds
Homeownership Programs Loan Insurance Fiscal year ended October 31,
Program Total Program Fund 2016 2015
(in thousands)
159 130,025 $ 672 $ - % 130,697 133,147
— — — 5,709 5,709 14,689
— 6,789 68 26,039 32,896 30,066
— (1,992) 4 12,395 10,407 10,236
— — — 15,521 15,521 16,056
— 1,501 8 — 1,509 820
159 136,323 752 59,664 196,739 205,014
— 81,711 459 — 82,170 83,613
- 2,250 - - 2,250 3,481
— 2,553 — — 2,553 4,477
- 17,540 115 4,405 22,060 17,153
— 3,417 — 1,139 4,556 4,556
3 374 — 156 530 578
— — — 10,371 10,371 9,596
— 763 — — 763 378
14,313 90 151 14,554 7,287
3 122,921 664 16,222 139,807 131,119
156 13,402 88 43,442 56,932 73,895
- - - 117,076 117,076 147,990
- 763 — - 763 378
— (365) — (110,500) (110,865) (75,000)
(338) — — — — —
(338) 398 — 6,576 6,974 73,368
(182) 13,800 88 50,018 63,906 147,263
2,296 578,007 16,110 1,735,314 2,329,431 2,183,390
— — — - — (1,222)
2,296 578,007 16,110 1,735,314 2,329,431 2,182,168
2,114 591,807 $ 16,198 $ 1,785,332 $ 2,393,337 2,329,431
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State of New York Mortgage Agency

(A Component Unit of the State of New York)
Schedules of Cash Flows

Fiscal Year Ended October 31, 2016 with comparative

totals for 2015

Cash flows from operating activities
Interest received on loans
Principal payment on loans
Purchase of mortgage loans
Commitment fees, insurance premium and application
fees earned
Operating expenses
Expenditures related to federal grants
Transfers
Other
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

Cash flows from non-capital financing activities
Interest paid on bonds
Mortgage recording surtax receipts
Payments to New York State and its Agencies
CRF funds received
Federal grants
Bond proceeds
Retirement and redemption of bonds
Net cash provided by (used in) non-capital
financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of internal software
Earnings on investments
Proceeds from the sale or maturities of investments
Purchase of investments

Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities
Net (decrease) increase in cash

Cash, beginning of fiscal year

Cash, end of fiscal year

Reconciliation of operating revenues (expenses) to
net cash (used in) provided by operating activities:
Net operating revenues (expenses)

Adjustment to reconcile operating income to net cash
provided by (used in) operating activities:
CRF funds received
Earnings on investment
Interest payments and amortization
Unrealized gain (loss) on investment
Other
Transfers
Changes in assets and liabilities
Mortgage loans and other loans, net
Interest, fees and other receivables
Student loans
Allowance for anticipated claims
Interfund payables
Unearned income, accounts payable and other
Postemployment retirement benefits payable
Net pension liability
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

Non-cash investing activities

Net increase (decrease) in fair value of investments

General Homeowner
Operating Mortgage Mortgage
Fund Revenue Revenue
(in thousands)
— 96,010 33,537
— 214,123 85,956
— (266,187) (101,702)
(27,145) — —
(763) — —
16,818 (16,115) —
12,785 (12,016) (7,577)
1,695 15,815 10,214
— (57,739) (21,061)
10,100 — —
763 — —
— 278,590 —
— (302,925) (66,830)
10,863 (82,074) (87,891)
(119) — —
66 5,644 1,775
81,262 1,646,919 393,339
(94,485) (1,586,741) (318,533)
(13,276) 65,822 76,581
(718) (437) (1,096)
2,658 4,790 2,333
1,940 4,353 1,237
(20,204) 25,521 7,929
(10,100) — _
(71) (5,297) (1,422)
— 58,788 22,922
(12) 1,320 684
(4,567) 8,061 (2,562)
16,818 (16,115) —
— (52,127) (15,746)
— (3,017) (686)
2,874 (1,552) (530)
10,316 233 (375)
2,554 — —
4,087 — —
1,695 15,815 10,214
12 (1,320) (684)
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Supplemental Schedule IIT

Single Family Student Mortgage Total All Funds
Homeownership Programs Loan Insurance Fiscal year ended October 31,
Program Total Program Fund 2016 2015

(in thousands)

157 $ 129,704 $ 854 $ - $ 130,558 $ 133,609
180 300,259 1,765 — 302,024 291,635
— (367,889) — — (367,889) (182,463)
— - — 23,618 23,618 19,469
— (27,145) — (27,145) (26,898)
— (763) — - (763) (378)
(338) 365 — — 365 —
1 (6,807) (207) (16,159) (23,173) (21,049)
— 27,724 2,412 7,459 37,595 213,925
— (78,800) (493) — (79,293) (81,583)
— — — 180,831 180,831 190,115
— — — (115,854) (115,854) (116,916)
— 10,100 — — 10,100 —
— 763 — — 763 378
— 278,590 — — 278,590 419,540
— (369,755) (1,478) - (371,233) (515,458)
— (159,102) (1,971) 64,977 (96,096) (103,924)
— (119) — — (119) (900)
— 7,485 37 33,927 41,449 38,374
— 2,121,520 50,255 1,045,681 3,217,456 2,269,390
— (1,999,759) (48,723) (1,152,691) (3,201,173) (2,413,029)
— 129,127 1,569 (73,083) 57,613 (106,165)
— (2,251) 2,010 (647) (888) 3,836
— 9,781 3,287 1,693 14,761 10,925
- 7530 $ 5297 $ 1,046 $ 13,873 $ 14,761
156 $ 13,402 $ 88 $ 43,442 % 56,932 $ 73,895
— (10,100) - — (10,100) —
— (6,790) (72) (26,039) (32,901) (30,066)
— 81,710 460 — 82,170 83,613
— 1,992 4) (12,395) (10,407) (10,236)
2 934 7 3,193 4,134 (2,321)
(338) 365 — — 365 -
180 (67,693) — — (67,693) 108,015
2 (3,701) 181 — (3,520) 36
— — 1,765 — 1,765 1,157
— — — 408 408 (11,056)
— 792 ) (790) — -
) 10,172 11 (360) 9,801 (2,719)
— 2,554 — — 2,554 3,901
— 4,087 — — 4,087 (294)
- $ 27,724 $ 2412 $ 7459 $ 37,595 $ 213,925
- $ (1,992) $ 4 $ 12,395 $ 10,407 $ 3,559
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Report of Independent Auditors on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and
on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

Management and the Directors of the Board
State of New York Mortgage Agency
New York, New York

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the State of
New York Mortgage Agency (the Agency), a component unit of the State of New York, which
comprise the statement of net position as of October 31, 2016, and the related statements of
revenues and expenses and changes in net position, and cash flows for the year then ended, and
the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated January 26,
2017,

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Agency’s
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Agency’s
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Agency’s
internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough
to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Agency’s financial statements are
free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly,
we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance
or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the entity’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance.
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

St + MLL?

January 26, 2017
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